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I’m proud to fulfil my purpose of building a better 
working world by supporting EY to set targets for EY’s 
greenhouse gas emission and create a plan how we 
can reduce our emissions to meet a sustainable level.

“
Annina Kaukonen
Sustainability Coordinator, EY Finland
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Who we are

All EY people live by a set of shared 
values that define who we are. These 
values are the fundamental beliefs of the 
EY organization. They guide our actions 
and behavior. They influence the way we 
work with each other, and the way EY 
professionals serve clients and engage 
with our communities.  

We are:

• People who demonstrate integrity, respect, teaming 
and inclusiveness.

• People with energy, enthusiasm and the courage to lead. 

• People who build relationships based on doing the 
right thing.

Building a better working world is EY’s purpose and the 
foundation of our business model, ensuring we remain at the 
forefront of stakeholder expectations. We strongly believe that 
by building trust and confidence in the capital markets, helping 
our clients tackle their toughest issues, running our business 
according to our values, and offering our people exceptional 
opportunities, we go a long way toward fulfilling that purpose. 
This forms the core of who we are and what we do every day.

We believe a better working world is one where economic 
growth is sustainable and inclusive. We serve several different 
stakeholders who count on us to deliver quality and excellence 
in everything we do. We are committed to promoting 
sustainable business and acting responsibly in relation to our 
employees, clients and communities. 

In addition to what we do at work every day, we also believe 
that business has a role to play in helping tackle some of the 
world’s toughest challenges. This commitment is deeply rooted 
in our employees’ engagement and everyday actions to bring 
EY’s purpose to life. We want to deliver true impact in terms 
of building a better working world through EYs global strategy 
NextWave – our ambition to create long-term value for clients, 
people and society as the world’s most trusted, distinctive 
professional services organization. 

This year, we expanded our reporting on progress 
toward realizing that value — by incorporating increased 
environmental, social and governance (ESG) disclosures; using 
the WEF-IBC Stakeholder Capitalism Metrics, Global Reporting 
Initiative and EY NextWave key performance indicators; as well 
as reporting on EY’s commitment to the UN Global Compact 
and the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

EY’s annual - and sustainability report is organized around four 
pillars: Principle of Governance, People, Planet and Prosperity 
from WEF-IBC Stakeholder Capitalism Metrics.



5EY Value Realized: Finland / EY Finland Annual Report FY21  |

Who we are

This is a journey — as it is for many organizations — as we more effectively 
measure and report value creation, focus on stakeholder impact, and integrate ESG 
into the core of what we do every day. We believe this is the most important way 
for us to execute our purpose.

 – Our responsibility to our people to create a diverse, 
safe, and evolving work environment

 People

– Our role in protecting the planet to support 
the needs of current and future generations

 Planet

– Our role in furthering economic, technological and 
social progress for our communities

 Prosperity

– Our purpose, Governance and Accountability 

 Principles of Governance 
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Country Managing Partner’s 
Letter 
I am pleased to present to you our annual report for fiscal year covering 1 July 2020–
30 June 2021 (FY21) – EY Value Realized: Finland. This report reflects the measurable, 
positive long-term value that we bring to our clients, people and society. In this report, 
we highlight our commitment to transparency and improvements on how we operate 
while showcasing how we’re building a better working world.

In 2019 we created NextWave, our global purpose-led strategy 
and ambition to create long-term value for EY clients, people 
and society. This strategy has been the catalyst to our own 
transformation agenda. This year we are advancing our 
measuring and reporting on the value we create.

We have expanded our Environmental, Social and Governance 
(ESG) reporting to cover both the World Economic Forum’s 
International Business Council (WEF-IBC) Stakeholder 

Capitalism Metrics and GRI Standards. Our report also follows 
the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) 
framework.

The WEF-IBC metrics include 21 core metrics across four 
pillars: Principles of Governance, Planet, People, and 
Prosperity, aligned with the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals. The structure of this report follows these 
principles.
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The last part of the report provides information about our 
economic operations. As we all know, the fiscal year 21 
was strongly impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic. The 
Finnish economy recovered quickly from it and EY Finland’s 
performance was strong in a changed environment. 

Since the beginning, the fiscal year 21 was strong for EY 
Finland in terms of growth and profitability. I’m extremely 
proud of our teams who managed to create profitable growth 
during these volatile times.

Taking care of the planet and its people
We have made long-term commitments such as achieving 
net zero carbon emissions, increasing diversity, equity 
and inclusiveness in the workforce and contributing to the 
prosperity of the communities we operate in. While making 
these commitments, it is critical to measure improvement 
and action plan results to achieve them. Only by measuring 
can we benchmark progress, improve decision-making and 
accountability, and increase trust.

With this report, we want to highlight the progress achieved 
across our organization in Finland in FY21 toward creating and 
protecting long-term value for all stakeholders. These include

• the switch to use renewable energy as part of the actions to 
reach net-zero emissions by 2025 

• our focus on diversity, including an increase in the share of 
female partners to 32% 

• 52 hours of training that have been delivered on average per 
employee

• 160 EY participants and 206 000 lives positively impacted 
through our corporate social responsibility program, 
EY Ripples.

Looking ahead
While this report looks at EY’s efforts over the past year, we 
are also continuously focusing on what we can do in the future. 

With our comprehensive range of services, we contribute 
to a sustainable business and society in the long term. Our 
contributions range from conducting audits, providing results, 
reshaping strategy, enabling innovation and transformation to 
helping companies address tax and regulatory requirements. 

In September 2021, we announced a global investment of 
10 billion US dollars in EY organization during the next three 
years. This investment will help us to further build trust in the 
capital markets by strengthening the audit quality, including 
technology-driven innovations in risk and audit procedures to 

detect and prevent fraud. The investment plan includes 2.5 
billion dollars for technology with a strong focus on AI, data 
and disruptive technologies. We will also expand EY-Parthenon 
and our sustainability services and make investments to 
ensure that our clients and EY people benefit from leading 
technology – all backed up by continued strategic acquisitions 
and our ecosystem of world-class alliances.  

Focusing on wellbeing and an inclusive work culture
Building a better working world also guides our views on the 
work lives of our employees. 

We strive to be an attractive and relevant employer that 
delivers on our values. We are constantly making efforts to 
increase diversity, equity and inclusiveness in the workforce 
and the community around us. Our partnership with Helsinki 
Pride for the third year in a row reflects our commitment 
toward diversity and inclusiveness. 

In June 2021, we announced our new hybrid working model. 
This flexible model is designed to support the wellbeing of 
our employees and enable effective collaboration within and 
between our teams and clients. The new hybrid model entails 
less traveling and commuting which will help reduce carbon 
emissions.  

I want to thank our people, clients and 
other stakeholders for a successful FY21. 
As we look forward, I am confident that 
through collaboration we will build a 
better working world.

Mikko Äijälä 
Country Managing Partner 
EY Finland

Country Managing Partner’s Letter
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Our strategy: NextWave

In today’s rapidly advancing world, what clients, EY people 
and all stakeholders want and need from EY is changing. 
Innovation and agility are now more important than ever 
before. NextWave is our global strategy and ambition to 
create long-term value as the world’s most trusted, distinctive 
professional services organization. 

With the launch of NextWave in 2019, EY made a commitment 
to drive deeper engagement around our purpose and what 
it means for all our stakeholders. Back then, nobody knew 
how dramatically the world would change as a result of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. In these challenging times, NextWave 
has put us in a strong position to adapt and innovate and our 
purpose of Building a better working world has never been 
more relevant.

It continues to inspire EY people to not only serve our clients 
but also to use our knowledge, skills and experiences to 
support the communities in which we live and work.

For clients, creating long-term value is about helping them 
grow, optimize and protect value so they can address today’s 
challenges and move forward into the next wave of innovation 
and technological and social change. Looking ahead, EY will 
continue to make investments in digitalization and technology 
in order to better serve clients.

For EY people, long-term value is about creating an exceptional 
experience for them, one that includes investing in new 
experiences and honing the leadership skills that EY clients 
need.

For society, long-term value is created though the work that 
EY people do every day – fostering confidence and trust in the 
world’s capital markets and broader business. We also believe 
that businesses can do more to foster inclusive economic 
growth that benefits all stakeholders.

How we create long-term value
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How we create long-term value

Value creation model 

We have defined long-term value as a strategic lens for value 
creation across a broader group of stakeholders. This is a step 
beyond the typical view of value creation that is focused solely 
on financial value.

Our value creation model is based on making the best use of 
our inputs of human, social, intellectual, financial and natural 
capital by leveraging our services in each of our service lines 
and functions toward our strategic pillars to create long-term 
client, people, societal and financial value.

Our Value Creation Model — Building a better working world 

Human Capital

• Skilled and engaged 
employees

Social Capital

• Contribution to society

Intellectual capital 
• Knowledge, experience, 

competencies and brand

Financial Capital
• Sustainable growth

Natural Capital
• Climate and environmental 

management

People value 
• To create an exceptional 

experience for EY people

Client value
• To help clients grow, 

optimize and protect value

Social value
• To build trust in capital 

markets and have a positive 
impact on communities and 
planet

Financial value
• To be the long-term growth 

leader

Our work is based on our strategic pillars: 

• Client centricity, exceptional and diverse people, global 
integration and teaming, and data and technology

• Our service lines: Assurance, Consulting, Strategy and 
Transactions, Tax and Law, and Core Business Services

• Engaging with our stakeholders

Our Contribution:
We are committed to creating long-term value as 
the world’s most trusted, distinctive professional 

services organization. 

Input 
Our capitals

Output
Our value created



Interview with Mikko Järventausta – how to turn 
long-term value creation into reality?

We are currently in the midst of a 
paradigm shift – a shift that was 
underway prior to the pandemic, but 
which has been accelerated by the crisis. 
Against a backdrop of some major 
global challenges and changing societal 
expectations, organizations are moving 
away from shareholder primacy toward 
stakeholder capitalism. 

Stakeholder capitalism 
recognizes that the 
interests of shareholders 
are best served when 
organizations consider 
the long-term interests 
of all their stakeholders 
— customers, employees 
and community, including 
shareholders. In a nutshell, 
we should be working 
toward a paradigm that 
recognizes not only 
shareholder value, but also 
stakeholder value.

At EY, we believe that 
companies will be 
instrumental in addressing 
the major environmental 
and social challenges we 
face today. Going forward, 
customers, employees, 
investors and regulators 
will expect companies 
to play a greater role in 
addressing the world’s 
biggest challenges. While 
doing this, companies will 
also be expected to create 
long-term sustainable value 
for their stakeholders. 

It can be difficult to 
define precisely who 
the stakeholders are 

as businesses vary 
considerably, and it will 
be virtually impossible for 
boards to treat the interests 
of all stakeholder equally. 
However, giving specific 
legal obligations in this area 
is not a solution.

According to the EY 
Long-Term Value and 
Corporate Governance 
Survey, 66% of European 
C-suite leaders and board 
member respondents 
believe that the pandemic 
has increased stakeholders’ 
expectations of 
companies driving positive 
societal developments, 
environmental sustainability 
and inclusive growth. 
In addition, 60% of 
respondents in the latest 
EY Europe Attractiveness 
Survey anticipate that 
focus on sustainability and 
climate change is likely to 
accelerate significantly as a 
result of the pandemic.

Recent examples of high-
profile policy frameworks 
also indicate the direction 
of travel. The European 
Green Deal – a set of policy 

initiatives that aim to make 
Europe climate neutral by 
2050 – requires companies 
to adopt more sustainable 
business practices. To be 
able to make this transition, 
companies must have the 
right corporate governance 
in place. 

The EY Long-Term Value 
and Corporate Governance 
Survey concludes that for 
corporate governance to 
fully unleash sustainable 
performance, there needs 
to be alignment across the 
key areas of governance, 
from how boards manage 

risk to how they devise 
remuneration strategies 
and how they provide 
transparent, authentic 
reporting on their company’s 
progress toward long-term 
value goals. 

In the end, sustainability 
is not simply a means for 
companies or boards to 
distinguish themselves. It is 
an imperative for survival. 
To be trusted and even in 
some situations retain their 
license to operate in the 
future, companies will have 
to create sustainable value 
for all their stakeholders. 

In
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How we create long-term value

Mikko Järventausta, EY Finland Assurance Leader
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How we create long-term value

Contributing through our strategic pillars

We deliver on our purpose Building a better working world, and 
achieve our ambition to create long-term value as the world’s 
most trusted, distinctive professional service organization 
through four strategic pillars:

 Client centricity
Client centricity means putting client relationships at the 
heart of our strategy, operations and processes. It’s also 
about understanding the wider issues that clients face. Then, 
developing the solution – drawing on our expertise across EY 
and our wider ecosystem, packaged with excellent delivery and 
the latest technology. That’s how we deliver long-term value 
for clients.

 Exceptional and diverse people
As clients’ needs become more complex, we need people 
from a broader range of backgrounds. To continually sharpen 
our peoples’ skills, we are making investments to empower 
EY people with the right mindset- and skillsets. This helps to 
navigate what’s next, become the transformative leaders the 
world  needs, pursue careers as unique as they are, and build 
their own exceptional EY experiences. These changes will help 
create agile and engaged teams and will drive long-term value 
for clients and all EY people.

 Global integration and teaming
The way we team across our globally integrated organization 
differentiates us and drives value for all stakeholders. We’re in 
a strong position. But we need to take further steps in the right 
direction – to make sure our operating models are efficient, 
we free up capital to invest in technology and innovation, and 
better enable teaming.

 Data and technology
Technology and data are changing everything – from how we 
create value to how we relate to each other and clients. Until 
now, we’ve used technology to improve what we already do. 
Going forward, we’ll use it to do new things – powered by data, 
which we’ll use to differentiate our offerings. Transforming 
means accelerating our global investment in innovation and 
emerging technologies, and collaborating with alliance and 
ecosystem relationships.

With our NextWave ambition, we are unequivocally stating 
our goal to become the most trusted professional services 

organization.
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Contributing through our services

Furthermore, we provide long-term value through the services 
we deliver.

Assurance
Assurance teams serve the public interest by promoting 
trust and confidence in business and the capital markets. EY 
Assurance business line provides audit, financial accounting 
advisory services (“FAAS”) as well as forensics and integrity 
services (“Forensics”) for many of Finland’s largest listed 
companies, subsidiaries of global corporations and private 
entities.

Audit teams serve the public interest by delivering high-
quality, analytics-driven audits with independence, integrity, 
objectivity and professional skepticism. EY is one of the 
largest auditors of publicly traded companies in Finland. We 
also audit thousands of small- and medium-sized companies, 
foundations, associations, etc. In the last couple of years, 
we have deployed new, world-class technological tools that 

improve the quality of EY audits. Our digital tools also enable 
our audit professionals to execute an analytics-driven audit to 
bring a new level of insight and perspective to the audit.

FAAS and Forensics’ teams help protect and restore enterprise 
and financial reputations, help support the finance function 
in enhancing decision-making and efficiency and help address 
the risks and opportunities arising from climate change and 
sustainability issues.

Together, EY Assurance services help protect and promote 
sustainable, long-term value for stakeholders.

By investing in our people, we can keep up with the changing 
world. We have continued training our assurance professionals, 
from trainees to partners. This, among other things, ensures 
that our people are also prepared to provide audit and 
advisory services for sustainability information.

How we create long-term value

We further the public interest by 
proactively addressing stakeholders’ 

needs for trust and confidence in 
business and the capital markets.

Service Line Leader: 
Mikko Järventausta

455
employees in
EY Assurance
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How we create long-term value

Tax and Law
EY Tax helps its clients understand and manage their tax 
compliance and reporting obligations responsibly and 
proactively. EY has one of Finland’s strongest tax practices 
with competencies in business tax, international tax, 
transaction services and tax-related issues associated with 
people, compliance, reporting and technology. We advise our 
clients on resolving uncertain tax positions and we help them 
assess, improve and monitor their tax functions’ processes, 
controls and risk management.

We also maintain effective relationships with the tax 
authorities and foster open dialogue with tax administrators, 
government officials and other stakeholders about tax issues, 
the impact of policy decisions and the contributions that 
companies and individuals make to society by paying the 
correct amount of a variety of taxes. International measures, 
such as the European Union Directive on the Mandatory 
Disclosure Regime, also turn a greater focus to the tax arena.

Through EY Law, we provide clients with the detailed 
guidance they need to navigate the increasingly complex legal 
environment of the global economy. Our legal professionals 
draw on their diverse perspectives and skills to give our clients 
seamless service through all the challenges of law while 
ensuring a single point of contact for all our clients’ questions.

Enabling business 
decisions through insights 

on government policy, 
regulatory obligations and 

operations.

Service Line Leader: 
Kari Pasanen

217
employees in 
Tax and Law
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How we create long-term value

Strategy and Transactions
EY Transaction Advisory Services was recently renamed 
Strategy and Transactions to reflect how we help create 
strategies for the clients to grow, optimize their portfolios and 
improve profitability.

Again, this year, the level of activity remained high. We 
have won a larger share of the market, and for the fourth 
consecutive year, we show double-digit growth. Mergers and 
acquisitions (M&A) market was impacted hard by the global 
pandemic and many transactions went on hold for some time. 
We have, however, experienced an increased M&A appetite 
since late June and are somewhat positive in our M&A 
outlook. Many companies still follow a transformation strategy 
supported by M&A activity and private equities (PEs are still 
active in the market).

This year’s growth numbers are, to a large extent, a reflection 
and result of our continued investments within both strategy 
and corporate finance where we have built strong teams with 
the experience, skills and insights to meet increasing client 
demands.

Full spectrum of strategy and transactions capabilities 
The challenges that EY clients face today and tomorrow 
require a more connected suite of solutions. To offer these 
solutions, Strategy and Transactions developed Connected 
Capital Solutions (CCS) which helps clients unlock their Capital 
Agendas, develop their strategic vision and convert it into 
concrete plans. Then, leveraging the global reach and depth of 
EY services, clients can execute those plans, transform their 
businesses and reach their full potential.

To deliver this unique proposition, Strategy and Transactions 
brings together world-class strategy services in EY-Parthenon 
with teams having transaction and corporate finance 
experience.

Offering clients the full spectrum of strategy, corporate 
finance, buy and integrate, sell and separate, and reshaping 
results capabilities help them define their strategic direction, 
drive actionable plans and deliver on their transformation 
strategies.

It also means that Strategy and Transactions teams can be 
even more agile in how their capabilities, know-how and 
experience are brought together. It puts clients at the heart 
of every engagement, opening exciting opportunities for 
EY people to accelerate their careers and realize their full 
potential in an inclusive, high-growth environment.

Enabling clients to 
reimagine their eco-systems, 
reshape their portfolios and 

reinvent themselves for a 
better future

Service Line Leader: 
Lasse Laurio

93
employees in 
Strategy and 
Transactions
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Consulting
EY Consulting is a diverse team of consultants and industry 
professionals with a global mindset and a collaborative 
culture, building a better working world by realizing business 
transformation through the power of people, technology and 
innovation. Within EY Consulting, we are also helping people 
grow by embracing innovative new opportunities, technologies 
and working practices.

Transformation is in our DNA and Transformation Realized is 
our system to drive transformative change. In today’s shifting 
environment, organizations are encountering more change 
and disruption than ever before. In Consulting, we can help 
our clients navigate this by helping them see what’s now, next 

and beyond through our unique transformation approach 
and methodology. We will drive transformative change 
and help our clients harness new core drivers of business 
value. We will bring together our wide range of capabilities, 
skills, solutions and tools to create long-term value for our 
clients, making a meaningful impact throughout the broad 
range of constituencies they serve. For example, we will 
simplify complex issues and create actionable insights using 
technology and data, bring structure to project activities, or 
utilize the lessons learned, based on our experiences from 
similar situations.

How we create long-term value

By placing humans at the center, 
leveraging technology at speed and 
enabling innovation at scale, we’re 

helping clients create long-term value 
and thrive in the Transformative Age.

Service Line Leader: 
Riku Piipari

122
employees in 

Consulting
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How we create long-term value

Functions develop initiatives that support the organization- and service 
line-level strategies, as well as market execution plans that help define and 

support points of synergy across multi-business activities.

Core Business Services (CBS)
The Core Business Services (CBS), EY’s internal functions, 
comprise Administration, Business Development, Facility 
Management, Finance, IT, Human Resources, Legal, Marketing 
and Communications, Real Estate and Risk Management.

We are a creative, curious and consultative community of 
specialists helping day-to-day business run efficiently and 
smoothly, eventually leading EY to business success. CBS 
professionals work closely within their Nordic, EMEIA and 
Global teams.

58
employees in  

CBS
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How we create long-term value
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How we create long-term value

Magnus Kuchler, EY Nordics Markets Leader 

Sustainability is one of the defining 
issues of our time. All companies, across 
all industries, face a challenge and an 
opportunity in driving sustainability 
improvements. EY wants to be at the 
forefront of the sustainability agenda and 
has a significant role to play in addressing 
the challenges facing us. Across EY, we 
have accelerated our focus on embedding 
sustainability into everything we do for our 
clients, people and communities.

At the beginning of 2021, 
we launched our new 
carbon ambition: to be 
carbon negative in 2021 
and net-zero in 2025. The 
carbon ambition is building 
on our 2020 carbon-neutral 
achievement but, inspired by 
our clients and encouraged 
by our people, we understood 
that we had to go further and 
faster with our commitments. 
EY’s purpose of Building a 
better working world compels 
us to do just that. 

A key action to realize the 
ambition is to invest in 
products and services to 
support our clients on their 
decarbonization journeys. 
As a Markets leader in the 
Nordics, I am proud to see 
how our teams across all 
service lines are driving 
this work. We have tightly 
connected teams, supporting 
clients in their sustainability 
transformations – teams 
working with sustainability 
reporting, carbon taxes, ESG 
due diligence, supply chain 
advisory, change culture, etc.  

In my work, I make sure that 
sustainability is at the core 
of the Vested and future 

workplace offerings that 
I am driving. And, as with 
most of our offerings, we are 
taking our own medicine. For 
example, we have a Vested 
partnership together with 
our facilities management 
service provider in the 
Nordics. EY has set very 
ambitious sustainability goals 
and our service provider is 
incentivized to cooperate 
with us to spur innovation 
and transform the ways of 
working to deliver on these 
targets.

Sustainability is also an 
important part of our future 
way of working. In June 
2021, we launched the new 
EY Hybrid Model which is 
designed to fit the individual 
needs and preferences of 
our nearly 8,000 people in 
the Nordics. The new hybrid 
working model with a smarter 
use of space and less travel 
and commute will support 
our environmental work.  

Finally, to meet the 
challenges stemming from 
climate change, companies 
will need to take big leaps 
toward sustainability and 
accelerate the pace of In

te
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disruptive innovation. To 
support this, EY Nordics 
launched our EY Doberman 
innovation studio SALLY, 
focused on sustainable 
business actions. We have 
already seen transformative 
projects from this studio, 
and I know that it is just the 
start of the journey. 

EY is committed to 
making business work for 
sustainability and making 
sustainability work for 
business. We have developed 

a value-led sustainability 
framework to support our 
clients from start to finish on 
their sustainability roadmap. 
This positions EY as a leader 
in providing enterprise-
wide sustainability 
transformation, working 
with the world’s leading 
organizations to deliver 
growth and profit with 
purpose, forging new ways 
to protect and creating value 
from sustainability.
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How we create long-term value

EY’s Megatrend report 2020 describes 
how the world is facing a major impact 
on the environment and climate. The 
work with innovation is a driving force 
for adjusting to a more sustainable 
future. As an auditing and consulting 
company, it is important that we can 
support our customers in implementing 
a transformation in their business which 
can contribute to new ways of working, 
skills and collaborations.

In order to focus more 
on sustainability in 
our business offering 
innovation, customer 
experience and digital 
design, the design and 
innovation company 
Doberman was acquired in 
2020. EY’s and Doberman’s 
ambition is to support 
companies in sustainable 
business, product and 
service development in 
new and innovative ways. 
Together, EY and Doberman 
launched the innovation 
studio SALLY in December 
2020. SALLY offers a 
unique solution for design, 
technology, innovation 
and customer experience 
by utilizing EY’s and 
Doberman’s different areas 
of expertise.

One challenge is that 
many actors working 
with sustainability see 
it as something that is 
done alongside the main 
business. Therefore, SALLY 
focuses on finding brave 
leaders who want to truly 
transform their business 
and face climate change 
upfront. Within the projects, 

customers help us find 
areas of innovation that can 
enable more sustainable 
business. This could be, 
for example, developing a 
new sustainable product 
or service, or relocating 
its core business through 
a new circular business 
model. 

The projects can be 
carried out in the so-called 
sustainability laboratories 
(s-labs). Focusing on 
sustainability, the s-labs 
are innovation units where 
companies can effectively 
test new prototypes, 
products and solutions 
before they are launched 
in the market. SALLY 
also offers collaboration 
laboratories (co-labs). In the 
co-labs, companies from 
different sectors can jointly 
tackle problems that are too 
big to address for a single 
company. Guided by leading 
innovation methodology, 
the companies create 
solutions to complex 
problems through 
collaboration and exchange 
of experiences.

Linnéa Becker, Studio Lead SALLY

SALLY is an example of how 
EY integrates sustainability 
into our business and offers 
expertise and solutions 
to develop the best 
sustainability-driven business 
models for customers 
throughout the Nordic 
region. Sustainability cannot 
be a short-term initiative — 

it should be linked to core 
business and projects that 
make a difference and create 
value for the planet, the 
business and the users, with 
all the three playing equally 
important roles.
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Contributing through value-led 
sustainability services
At EY, we are committed to making 
business work for sustainability and 
making sustainability work for business. 
In 2021, we launched the EMEIA 
Sustainable Business Service initiative 
to further help our clients create 
value by adopting business strategies, 
innovations, operations and technologies 
that achieve environmentally sustainable 
growth.

EY has developed a Value-Led 
Sustainability framework to help 
design and deliver on the business 
and investment case for sustainability. 
With this framework, we want to help 
our clients by shifting sustainability 
from a reporting-led conversation to a 
value-based narrative, engaging with 
governments and the private sector 
to turn sustainability into a business 
opportunity and helping companies 
create and protect value.

We can help by accelerating our client’s 
net-zero transition journey and helping 
them execute change projects in their 
public and private sector organizations.

Finally, we can help our clients by 
evaluating the strategic and business 
value of improving ESG ratings — 
improved access to capital or increased 
investor confidence. We can support by 
activating a roadmap and working with 
wider stakeholders to accelerate key 
components of our client’s ESG strategy.

Global challenges of this scale demand 
a global approach. The EY ecosystem 
of service lines, areas, sectors, 
alliances and 300,000 people in over 
180 countries are positioned to help 
organizations navigate sustainability 
across their entire value chain and 
embed it as a key driver of creating long-
term value.
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Universities
Media/press

Partners

Suppliers

Regulators/governments

EY Global/EY EMEIA

Clients

NGOs/start-ups

EY employees/alumni

Contributing through stakeholder 
engagement 
At EY, we engage with a broad range 
of stakeholders every day on a local 
level, globally, internally and externally. 
Engaging with our stakeholders is 
important for us to identify, understand 
and act upon concerns, market 
trends and expectations from clients, 
employees and society. Each stakeholder 
is important to EY and understanding 
their needs and expectations is central 
to EY.

As a professional services firm, our key 
stakeholders are identified through their 
affiliation with EY’s service offerings, 
functions and roles. 

We engage with our stakeholders and maintain 
strong relations in structured and ad hoc ways.
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 EY employees/alumni
We develop our employees and inspire them, so that they 
can see the relationship between their day-to-day work 
and building a better working world. We engage with 
different teams on a daily basis, through Nordic, country or 
department level meetings, town halls and regular counselor 
conversations.

We nurture a culture of openness and easy accessibility to 
leadership. Employee engagement, diversity and inclusion are 
our corporate KPIs. We measure our performance through 
regular employee surveys.

We engage with our alumni through social media and via 
targeted events.

 Clients
We support our clients through our services, enabling them 
to achieve sustainable growth and create long-term value. 
We provide auditing and assurance around public reporting 
and provide advice and quality services to help build trust and 
market stability. We are in regular dialogue with our clients and 
ensure follow-up on deliverables to ensure value creation. We 
conduct formal client satisfaction surveys every year.

 EY Global/EMEIA
We interact with EY Global and EMEIA via our leadership 
structure, in the EY Global Governance Council and other 
forums that support and influence global decision-making for 
our member firms. We leverage our truly globally integrated 
organization when forming teams with special competencies, 
sector knowledge or local insights to benefit our clients.

 Regulators or government
We work for the government and public institutions and 
specialize in public sector issues. EY senior advisors and 
specialists are represented in various industry bodies, public 
committees and forums that debate and advice on new 
legislation and issues.

We offer our sector-specific knowledge to public authorities to 
support policy-making and engage in the development of new 
initiatives for the benefit of citizens and society. We develop 
thought leadership in support of public policy development and 
regulations pertaining to matters such as sustainability, urban 
development and reporting.

 Universities
We recruit talent from universities and business schools and 
commit to their continued education, from trainees to strong 
professionals up to partner level. EY people give lectures at 
universities to provide insights and business perspectives 
to students. We host competitions and events for students 
and offer mentorship programs to attract students to EY and 
professional services in general and we engage regularly on 
social media platforms.

 Non-governmental organizations (NGOs) or start-ups
Through the EY Entrepreneur of The Year program and EY 
Ripples, the corporate volunteering program, we engage 
with start-ups and NGOs in our daily business. We also 
collaborate with NGOs for example through memberships and 
sponsorships. Our EY Private practice supports entrepreneurs, 
private businesses and their owners.

 Media
We share information via press releases and news on a regular 
basis with the media and via our home page and social media 
channels. We share opinion pieces and thought leadership 
and we are in regular dialogue with journalists to offer facts 
and our specialist knowledge on issues concerning the public 
debate. We answer requests from media about information on 
EY. We cooperate with media on EY-driven programs, events 
and agendas. 
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 Unlocking new value with EY partners
In this age of disruption, the pace of change has never been 
faster, the need for resiliency has never been more critical 
and embracing transformation has never been more vital. 
Achieving digital transformation is extremely difficult for a 
single organization alone. In collaboration with our Alliance 
and Ecosystem relationships, EY teams help companies 
rapidly and digitally transform with minimal risk. Together, we 
provide the technologies and insights that our clients need to 
create new forms of customer value by helping them achieve 
the transformational outcomes to be more agile, innovate at 
speed and be more resilient and better equipped to respond to 
disruptive change.

Driven by people and powered by technology, EY Alliance and 
Ecosystem relationships spark true business transformation to 
build a better working world. 

With EY Alliance and Ecosystem relationships, we unlock new 
value and together with our partners, help organizations find 
answers to the world’s toughest challenges.

 Memberships of association and external initiatives
Both on a Global and at a Nordic level, EY endorses initiatives 
that drive sustainability and has a positive impact on the wider 
community we live in. Examples of these Initiatives are UN 
Global Compact, SHE Index powered by EY and HEART 17. 

Since 2009, EY has supported the UN Global Compact, the 
UN’s strategic initiative for sustainability. This means that 
we are committed to showing commitment and working for 
the Global Compact’s ten principles in the areas of human 
rights, labor law, environmental issues and the fight against 
corruption. We follow up annually on how we work with these 
issues. More information can be found on EY’s global annual 
report, Value Realized. 

EY Nordics is the proud founding partner of HEART 17, a 
new global initiative in partnership with the United Nations 
Development Program (UNDP). We are supporting HEART 17 
in a number of other ways as well, e.g. we built the platform 
heart17.com, EY consultants provide project support, and last 
but not least, we are using our voice and network to create 
awareness about HEART 17 to get more people and companies 
to join.

EY Nordics contributes to transparency in gender equality 
by participating in the SHE Community in SHE Conference 
and SHE Index powered by EY. The SHE Index is a voluntary 
measurement of how companies perform on gender balance, 
gender equality policies and diversity and inclusion.

EY Finland is the official partner of Helsinki Pride, Finland’s 
largest human rights and cultural event since 2019. EY is 
committed to promoting a culture of equality and cohesion 
every day of the year, celebrating uniqueness and supporting 
wellbeing. Together with Helsinki Pride, EY wants to support a 
work culture where everyone can be themselves. 

https://www.ey.com/en_gl/global-review/value-realized-2021
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Megatrends affecting EY

Megatrends shape our business and markets and constitute 
both risks and opportunities for EY. We see it as strategically 
important for us to develop plans in line with megatrends and 
“the next big thing,” rather than plan based on the current 
status. The identified megatrends have been prioritized 
according to their relevance to EY’s business.

 Climate change
Despite all our technological progress, humanity depends on 
the environment for water, breathable air, food and shelter. 
With population growth, the use of polluting, carbon-intensive 
technologies and the development of a linear, take-make-
waste economy that overexploits ecosystems, we face a set of 
interconnected environmental challenges. The next wave of 
disruption in the environment interlinks with and exacerbates 
these challenges. The earth has passed a climate change 
threshold.

 How this affects EY:

• EY can, and must, play a leading role in driving 
decarbonization, enabled by market forces and backed 
by the right policy and regulatory incentives. Our global 
presence and expertise make us well positioned to lead on 
this journey. Technology is an important part of the solution 
in the development of the low-carbon economy, and with 
new and increased service offerings within new sectors 
– especially renewable energy, EY has an opportunity to 
support many stakeholders.  

• EY must undertake our own decarbonizing transformation 
to reposition our business and protect long term value. 

Environmental breach within EY’s value chain can create 
mistrust among our stakeholders and new and larger players 
with new solutions can put pressure on our ability to stay 
relevant.  

 Circular economy
• The aim of circular economy is to limit the pressure on 

natural resources and the amount of waste. The world’s 
natural resources are under increased pressure. It is 
therefore crucial that resources are used far more efficiently 
so that we reduce the need to extract new resources. 
Electronics and electronic equipment are one of the fastest 
growing waste streams in the EU, and valuable raw materials 
are lost as a result.

 How this affects EY:

• EY has high competence within circular economy and can, 
through client work, influence others to make the right 
decisions and in turn create positive ripple effects.

• EY is a big consumer of electronic products and hardware 
and as such we generate waste. EY must ensure that the 
entire supply chain is following applicable regulations and 
has high standards. Breach within EY’s supply chain could 
cause mistrust, increase cost and put further pressure on 
natural resources.

With EY Alliance and Ecosystem 
relationships, we unlock new value 
and together with our partners, we 

help organizations find answers to the 
world’s toughest challenges.
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 Technology
Technological transformation and digital innovation play a 
critical role in the evolution of society, and technological 
advances continue to reshape the world as we know it. 
Having technology at the center of business change enables 
organizations to successfully transform and unlock short- and 
long-term value for stakeholders, employees and communities.

 How this affects EY:

• Supporting our clients to become more sustainable and 
transparent: Environmental, social and governance (ESG) 
effects on technology services is an opportunity for EY, 
which in turn can reduce a client’s time spent on reporting, 
ensuring increased accuracy and less sources of error.

• The demand for faster, more detailed and high-quality 
performance of services is increasing. A potential risk is that 
EY does not develop fast enough and are passed by in the 
technological race. It requires continuous development of 
services and development of talent thus becomes crucial. 
Fraud or malicious use of technology is also increasing, 
forcing us to stay at the forefront of technological 
development. If clients are exposed to fraud and we fail to 
protect them, it could potentially damage reputation.

 New economic metrics
What we measure no longer reflects what we value. In order 
to survive and grow in an increasingly competitive and 
accountable business environment, organizations are required 
to report not only on their financial performance, but also 
their non-financial performance.

 How this affects EY:

• Our Climate Change and Sustainability Services teams 
can support our clients by understanding and evaluating 
the broader value impacts and outcomes, identifying the 
opportunities, and supporting the reporting of non-financial 
performance risks to their stakeholders.

• Stakeholders are increasingly demanding that their partners/
supply chains take a position on sustainability in their own 
operation, including ESG reporting. By failing to meet these 
expectations, EY could potentially become less competitive 
in the market.

 Demographics
The world is currently facing demographic changes at a 
pace that may pose significant challenges and opportunities 
for businesses. This includes higher demands from new 
generations (Gen Z and Millennials) on sustainability, 
business ethics, continuous learning and flexibility. Gen Z 
and Millennials have high expectations for sustainability and 
the role of companies in this matter. The new generation 
of workers expect companies to lead the way with a good 
example on ESG challenges. In addition, technological 
development requires a shift in educational focus.

 How this affects EY:

• We need to be at the forefront of sustainable growth and 
facilitate changes in the demographics area so that we are 
attractive to all relevant competences and skills.

• Competition is high for the best talent within our industry, 
and a good reputation is important for retaining and 
recruiting talent. Otherwise, there is a potential risk of losing 
employees or not getting hold of new talent.

 Globalization
Effects of political instability, increasing protectionism and 
economic and financial shifts are influencing our clients’ 
investment plans and the overall economic development of 
different sectors.

 How this affects EY:

• Through global integration and teaming, EY is meeting these 
challenges with the help of service offerings that support 
our clients and other stakeholders in navigating through this 
uncertainty.

• To meet client and stakeholder service quality expectations 
and increase our market trust, the EY organization is at the 
forefront of every change of pace that occurs globally.
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Kimmo Kaskikallio, Chief Technology Officer, EY Finland

Interview with Kimmo Kaskikallio – the role of 
technology in sustainability 

The importance of technology in achieving 
sustainability goals is undeniable. 
Without technology and its insightful use, 
companies will not be able to achieve their 
local and global goals that also benefit 
people, communities and society.

Working at the forefront 
of technological solutions, 
I have noticed the “four 
faces” of technology in 
the world of sustainability. 
The role of technology in 
sustainable business can be 
examined from the following 
angles: using technology 
to measure sustainability, 
using technology to 
enhance sustainability, 
using technology to 
ensure energy efficiency 
and the innovations and 
new technologies created 
in search of sustainable 
solutions. This fourfold 
categorization helps us 
understand the connection 
between technology and 
sustainability even better.

Firstly, technology can 
be used to measure 
sustainability. Predefined 
metrics can help companies 
understand their past, 
their present situation 
and the aspects of their 
business that still need to 
be developed. Measuring 
sustainability is not an 
entirely new concept 
but extending it to cover 
the value chain and ESG 
performance highlights the 
importance of technology. 
When measuring delivery 
chains and lifecycles, 

blockchain technology is 
an enticing option. When 
measuring equality and 
social values in a company, 
utilizing AI in interpreting 
long textual content seems 
like an inevitable solution. 

Secondly, technology can 
also enhance sustainability. 
With the help of 
technology, organizations 
can plan, analyze and 
control processes in 
a more financially 
beneficial, efficient and 
environmentally friendly 
way. For example, controlling 
assets with appropriate 
technology when building 
a bridge can extend its 
lifecycle by a decade, which 
leads to fewer necessary 
investments in the future 
and savings in concrete and 
steel, which in turn reduces 
emissions remarkably. 
Increased sustainability 
is, therefore, a welcome 
outcome of financial 
savvy and insightful use of 
technology.

The third face of technology 
relates to digitalization and 
how technology-related 
choices affect energy 
efficiency.  Digitalization 
does not automatically result 
in improved sustainability In
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– it requires thought and 
making learned decisions. 
Technologies themselves 
require energy and form their 
own carbon footprint. For 
example, the most commonly 
known cryptocurrency, 
Bitcoin, is based on a 
proof-of-work algorithm, 
consuming a whopping 91 
terawatt hours annually – 
almost the equivalent of 
our entire country, Finland, 
consuming 107 terawatt 
hours per year. However, not 
all cryptocurrencies binge 
on energy. The ones that are 
based on an alternative proof 
of stake algorithm are up to 
10,000 times more energy 
efficient – it is only a matter 
of choice in technology. 

The fourth and last face 
is made up of all the 
innovations and technologies 

created in search of 
sustainable solutions. When 
faced with change and 
challenges, humans have 
always produced innovations 
and new technology. 
Climate change has proven 
to be no different. It has 
already stemmed new fields 
that utilize technology 
in unprecedented ways. 
One such example is the 
combination of wind power 
and the hydrogen economy. 

To summarize, companies 
need to embrace technology 
as the enabler and facilitator 
of more sustainable business. 
Sustainability goals should be 
their priority in choosing and 
implementing technologies. 
When harnessed properly, 
data and technology help us 
build a better, sustainable 
working world.
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The exponential climate impact that we see in the world 
is creating a force for everyone to change their business 
model. 

“
Lisa Lindström
CXO, EY EMEIA Consulting, Co-founder of Doberman 



28 |  EY Value Realized: Finland / EY Finland Annual Report FY21

Risks and opportunities: 
importance to EY’s value creation 

Global megatrends and stakeholder analyses are important 
factors in assessing EY’s potential risks and opportunities. In 
addition to assessing external factors, our Risk Management 
team has evaluated and carried out a maturity analysis of EY 
internally. Below is a snapshot in time of our most material 
long-term risks and opportunities as seen as a consequence 

of sustainability-related developments, based on external 
and internal assessments. We have assessed each risk and 
opportunity in terms of consequence and the probability.

We have categorized each risk or opportunity within the 
four pillars: Principles of Governance, People, Planet and 
Prosperity, supported by the WEF-IBC metrics. 

Risks/opportunities identified - based on megatrends, stakeholder analysis and a maturity assessment 
internally at EY- consequence of sustainability related developments 

People Planet Prosperity Principles of Governance 

Globalization and 
geopolitical instability 

Sustainability integration in 
services 

Innovative practices leading 
to new markets 

Strong brand value with 
sustainability focus 

Talent management, 
well-being and retention

Diversity & Inclusion

Business ethics and 
compliance

Rising mean temperatures 
and extreme weather 
conditions 

Demands for climate and 
environmental action 

Supply chain and 
environmental impact

Business disruption / crisis 
response

Data ethics

Corruption and bribery 

Cyber threats and 
information security 

Supply chain and social 
conditions 

A
lm

os
t c

er
ta

in
U

nl
ik

el
y

Li
ke

ly
Ra

re

EssentialMedium HighLow

Consequence

P
ro

ba
bi

lit
y



29EY Value Realized: Finland / EY Finland Annual Report FY21  |

Risk and opportunities: importance to EY’s value creation

PRINCIPLES OF GOVERNANCE 

 Business ethics and compliance 
At a time when information is rapidly transmitted, it is vital for 
organizations to strive toward consistent ethical behavior. To 
be a trusted consultant, the EY organization has to act with 
the highest standards of business ethics and compliance. As 
an audit and consulting firm, the purpose of our business is 
to build trust in the capital markets, and ensure that we and 
our clients comply with the regulations and industry standards 
that exist. Any ethical lapse could damage the EY reputation 
and trust in the markets and have serious and far-reaching 
consequences. 

 Management: EY is working in a highly regulated area and 
we are subject to external audits by authorities regularly. 
Employees are subject to rigorous trainings and our quality 
and risk department undertake regular internal audits of 
selected clients and engagements and we follow strict 
independence processes for all client work. Each year 
EY Finland is included in an area-wide process to confirm 
compliance with the EY Global Independence Policy and 
process requirements and to report identified exceptions, 
if any. At the same time, all EY professionals are required 
to confirm compliance with independence policies and 
procedures at least once a year.  

 

 Corruption and bribery 
Operating as a multinational company, EY, particularly when 
operating in some locations, faces potential risks associated 
with corruption and bribery. Involvement in cases of corruption 
or bribery could severely damage trust and EY’s reputation 
and market position.  

 Management: EY has a strong anti-corruption compliance 
program in place. We anchor anti-corruption measures across 
EY, and partners and employees are obligated to complete 
yearly training. At least once a year as part of EY’s procedures, 
all EY professionals and certain other people, depending on 
their role, confirm that they comply with EY’s policies and 
procedures. A steadfast commitment to tackling corruption 
is also embedded in the services we offer EY clients. We 
also cooperate with external networks and groups to raise 
awareness of the fight against corruption. 

 Business disruption and crisis response
Crisis management and business continuity planning is 
essential to protect people and business from the impact 
of potential crises. As a global organization with a large 
workforce and client portfolio, it is important that we have 
solid contingency plans enabling us to respond to various 
potential threats, such as pandemics, terrorist attacks, cyber 
threats etc. 

 Management: EY has both global and local contingency plans 
implemented. These plans are subject to continuous updates 
and review. At the same time, we have regular workshops 
with all key stakeholders to ensure continuous compliance and 
improvements, and we ensure to communicate our plans to 
our employees and provide training regularly.  

 Cyber threats and information security 
Cyber threat management is more critical than ever as cyber-
attacks continue to evolve. The EY organization handles 
valuable and classified client information which needs to be 
protected and handled in accordance with legal requirements 
and guidelines. As cyber threats become more complex, the 
corresponding risks need to be managed with technology-
related intelligence as well as internal procedures to protect 
the information that EY handles. Oversight or noncompliance 
can result in large financial penalties and loss of client trust, as 
well as damage to the EY brand or market position. 

 Management: EY has comprehensive contingency plans, 
and EY Global has an ISO 27001 certification and thorough 
review of all systems and tools. An important element of 
risk mitigation and management in EY is our data protection 
and information security framework. We protect information 
assets, personal data and client information, through their 
creation, transmission and storage, in accordance with the 
requirements of applicable laws, regulations and professional 
standards. 
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 Data ethics
As technologies evolves, so does the potential for risk. While 
data analysis is not new, today we are able to process large 
amounts of data quickly and make correlations and predictions 
using disparate data sets. The ease of these efforts may create 
issues related to privacy, confidentiality, transparency, and 
identity.  

 Management: Data protection and our information security 
framework are important elements of risk mitigation and 
management in EY. We secure information assets of EY clients 
through our integrated data protection and information 
security strategy, and we believe that solid data protection and 
information security programs are the essential components 
of a leading professional services organization. Our data 
protection and information security programs and practices 
are focused on sharing information appropriately and lawfully 
while preserving confidentiality, integrity and availability. Our 
data protection framework is based on the principles of the EU 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). It addresses the 
issues raised by modern data management tools and systems.  

 

PLANET 

 Demands for climate and environmental action 
A lack of environmental focus is likely to cause reputational 
damage if we fail to incorporate sufficient climate action 
measures in our own operations. There is an increased 
environmental focus among all of the EY stakeholders, set to 
high priority. 

 Management: EY is taking extensive climate action both 
in our own operations and through our client work, helping 
clients to transform to more sustainable growth. EY has 
announced its ambitions to be carbon neutral by the end of 
2020 and to become carbon negative in 2021. By reducing 
our absolute emissions by 40% across Scopes 1, 2 and 3 
by FY25, against a FY19 baseline, consistent with a 1.5°C 
science-based target, approved by the Science Based Targets 
initiative (SBTi), EY will reach net zero in FY25. An important 
step to reach our goals will be to reduce our business travel 
by 65% by 2025. Energy consumption in our buildings, waste 
management etc. are also important factors we work with. 

 Rising mean temperatures and extreme weather 
conditions 
Insufficient climate measures can lead to rising global mean 
temperatures. This global warming is expected to cause an 
increase in the frequency of hurricanes, wildfires and floods. 
These events can adversely affect people and businesses 
located in the areas where these extreme weather conditions 
occur more frequently. 

 Management: To ensure EY has a minimal climate and 
environmental footprint, we aim to reduce our absolute 
emissions by 40% across Scopes 1, 2 and 3 by FY25, against 
an FY19 baseline, consistent with a 1.5°C science-based 
target, approved by the Science Based Targets initiative 
(SBTi), and reach net zero in FY25. Furthermore, as a globally 
integrated company, we rely on teams in many different 
regions across the globe, regions that may be exposed. EY is 
prepared to face the extreme weather conditions, which the 
current state of climate change is causing, by creating local 
crisis management plans and safety and action plans for crisis 
handling to ensure we are able to help our people and serve 
our clients at all times.  

 Supply chain and environmental impact  
There is an increasing demand from stakeholders and clients 
to integrate environment-friendly initiatives into supply chain 
management. As a global professional service organization, 
our global supply chain is of utmost importance. The EY 
organization has a large supplier portfolio and there are 
reputational risks associated with this. Any oversight can 
result in loss of client trust and damage to the EY brand or 
market position. 

 Management: EY’s Global Supplier Code of Conduct among 
other things, our environmental expectations and asks 
suppliers to verify their adherence and standards at the RFI/
RFP stage (and reaffirming at the time of contract execution). 
In addition, we monitor supplier performance through our EY 
Supplier Portal where suppliers complete a self-assessment 
questionnaire on their social and environmental policies, 
practices and certifications. 
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PEOPLE 

 Talent Management, well-being and retention 
Our employees are our greatest resource. Their growth in 
knowledge, prosperity and well-being and equal opportunities 
for all is central to the success of our organization. Risks 
associated with this could be attracting and retaining talent 
and further developing the organization. 

 Management: We continuously invest in our people to help 
them build the right skills and experiences through training 
and a wide variety of development opportunities. We support 
our people and leaders in achieving greater balance between 
career and private life while minimizing stressful working 
situations. We frequently ask about our people’s wellbeing, 
engagement and satisfaction and work hard to stay ahead as 
an attractive employer through focused employer branding 
activities engaging many of our employees across our 
business.  

 Diverse and inclusive organization 
The business case for building a diverse organization is clear 
and failing to see the power of diversity is likely to impact both 
reputation and growth.  

 Management: Being a globally integrated organization, our 
teams are naturally diverse, and we recruit broadly from all 
nationalities, backgrounds and age groups. Our main challenge 
concerns attracting and retaining female professionals and 
leaders and we have actions on place to improve gender 
equality on leadership level such as plans for recruitment and 
promotions, career conversations, mentoring etc.  

 

 Supply chain and social conditions 
Throughout the supply chain, risks associated with potential 
violations of human rights and international conventions pose 
a risk to the EY brand. 

 Management: EY’s Global Supplier Code of Conduct outlines 
our expectations concerning human rights and  social 
conditions and asks suppliers to verify their adherence and 
standards at the RFI/RFP stage (and reaffirming at the time 
of contract execution). In addition, we monitor supplier 
performance through our EY Supplier Portal where suppliers 
complete a self-assessment questionnaire on their social and 
environmental policies, practices and certifications. 
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Risk and opportunities: importance to EY’s value creation

PROSPERITY 

 Sustainability integration in services 
Country and EU legislation make ever-increasing demands on 
non-financial reporting, including all ESG factors. This sets new 
demands for new service offerings and for businesses to keep 
up and meet new requirements, set the pace and lead the way.   

 Management: At EY, we are integrating sustainability into 
all services to ensure we are at the forefront of the market 
and ready to meet new demands of increased sustainability 
focus. Examples include our EMEIA Sustainable Business 
Service initiative that help our clients create value by adopting 
business strategies, innovations, operations and technologies 
that achieve environmentally sustainable growth. Through our 
Value-Led Sustainability framework we help clients design and 
deliver on the business and investment case for sustainability. 
At the same time, we work to develop and build the right 
competence across service lines and to attract and retain top 
talent to help execute these ambitions.  

 Innovative practices leading to new markets 
With the emergence of new markets, especially in the 
renewable energy sector such as onshore or offshore wind 
power and hydropower and the global renewable energy 
industry is growing fast. This can offer huge potential for those 
who aim high, commit first and move fast, but also represents 
a risk for those companies not able to adapt, change and meet 
new demands. 

 Management: EY strives to combine experience, capabilities 
and tech to support clients in these new service areas and to 
gain sustainable growth. Our strong sector focus in all markets 
ensure we stay up to date with industry developments and are 
able to adapt our service offerings to shifts in demand. EY has 
the expertise to create opportunities to maximize shareholder 
support for long-term value creation strategies, measurement 
of progress towards new, purpose-driven goals and ensure 
transparency. Through our ecosystems of alliances, we are 
able to combine both emerging and widely used technologies 
with our capabilities to develop new offerings for clients.  

 Globalization and geopolitical instability 
Geopolitical complexity, effects from political instability, 
increasing protectionism, economic and financial shifts are 
exposing business to conflict and influencing our clients, their 
investment plans and the overall economic development for 
different sectors.  

 Management: Supported by our strong global presence 
and close industry alliance partners, EY is meeting these 
challenges through strong service offerings that support our 
clients in addressing these concerns and helping build a better 
working world.

Our identified risks and opportunities are based on 
assessing both external and internal factors, i.e., external 
material topics that have an impact on our long-term 
value creation and internal topics material to our 
position and performance.

Both are equally important and has helped us in 
distinguishing between long-term risks as a consequence 
of sustainability-related developments and economic, 
social and governance impacts throughout our value 
chain.
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Risk and opportunities: importance to EY’s value creation

Based on all our activities and in order to easily present how EY works with long-
term value creation, and how this is integrated into our strategy NextWave, we have 
summarized the main themes and focus areas into a sustainability roadmap. This 
gives all our stakeholders a good overall picture of our sustainability compass.

EY Nordics Sustainability 
Roadmap

NextWave is our global strategy and our 
ambition is to create long-term value as the 
world’s most trusted, distinctive professional 
services organization.

Building a better working world is EY’s purpose 
and the foundation for our business model. We 
believe a better working world is one where 
economic growth is sustainable and inclusive. 

Our ambition is to embed sustainability into 
every aspect of our business at EY. Principles of 
Governance, Planet, People and Prosperity are the 
pillars supporting our sustainability agenda using 
the SDGs as a practical framework and the 
WEF-IBC Stakeholder Capitalism Metrics to report 
and measure progress.

Principles of Governance Planet People Prosperity

High-level ambition To become the most 
trusted professional 
services organization

Protecting the planet 
to support the needs 
of current and future 
generations

Empower EY people 
to build their own 
exceptional EY 
experiences

Building a better working 
world in the communities 
where we live and work.

FY2025 
Targets & focus areas

• Code of Conduct and 
anti-corruption training, 
100%

• Exceptional Client Service 

• Suppliers signing code of 
conduct, 100% 

• Absolute CO2 
emissions -40%

• Business travel 
reduction

• Increase share of 
recycled waste 

• Diversity & Inclusion

• Learning & 
Development

• Exceptional 
experience

• Employee wellbeing

• 1000 participants

• Community 
volunteering through 
EY Ripples

• Lives impacted through 
volunteering. Aligned 
with Global Target 
to impact 1 billion 
persons by 2030

Actions • Require Code of 
Conduct training and 
Annual Independence 
Confirmation from all 
employees

• Require suppliers to sign 
Supplier Code of Conduct 

• Implement new travel 
policies

• Reduce overall office 
electricity usage 

• Improve waste 
sorting in our offices

• Support competence 
development

• Programs to build 
resilience and 
monitor working 
hours to support 
wellbeing

• Fair representation 
in promotion and 
recruitment rates

• Encourage and 
engage employees to 
participate in Ripples 
projects

• Introduce new 
initiatives to support 
local communities

SDGs 
Most relevant highlighted 
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EY value chain impact analysis 

Influence/impact supply chain EY’s activities Governance Client support 

Business ethics & 
anti- corruption/ bribery

Business ethics &  
anti- corruption/ bribery

D&I (Gender pay-gap) D&I (pay-gap)
Business ethics & 
anti- corruption/ bribery

EY’s procurement:

• Electronic equipment

• Data traffic/ infrastructure

• Canteen services

• Office refurbishment 
materials

Business travel
Building energy consumption
Data traffic/ infrastructure

Waste management

Office lease agreements 
(LEED/BREEAM or 
equivalent)

Greenhouse gas emissions 
from operations such as 
factories, cars etc. as well 
as indirect sources such as 
suppliers & customers

Social conditions Employee Competence 
development
Employee well-being

Social conditions 
Diversity & Inclusion

Social conditions  
Diversity & Inclusion

Economic growth Job creation
Economic growth through 
paid taxes

Corporate Social 
Responsibility activities (EY 
Ripples)

Economic growth

Low impact Medium impact High impact

Impact on society entails EY’s impact covering significant 
positive or negative impacts on the economy, environment and 
people. In order to constantly focus on the right sustainability-
related items, and to create value for those that are directly 
or indirectly impacted by our business, an impact assessment 
throughout our value chain is continuously being worked 
on. This work gives us valuable insights into where and in 

which areas we should focus now and in the future, and has 
enabled us to establish our key sustainable strategic goals and 
roadmap. Progress is regularly monitored at the management 
level both locally and at the Nordic level.

EY’s impact on society
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EY’s impact on society

Each of the significant impact topics (high and medium) is 
grouped and described below in each sustainability pillar – 
Principles of Governance, Planet, People and Prosperity:   

EY’s impact through client support 
is delivered as part of our value-led 
sustainability services. We help our 
clients by accelerating our their net 
zero transition journey and helping 
them execute change projects in their 

public and private sector organizations. 
Furthermore, we can help our clients by 
evaluating the strategic and business 
value of improving ESG ratings, 
improved access to capital or increased 
investor confidence. We can also support 

by activating a roadmap and working 
with wider stakeholders to accelerate 
key components of our clients’ ESG 
strategy. 

Impact theme Impact topic

Principles of Governance Business ethics & anti-corruption/ bribery

Planet

EY’s Procurement
Business travel
Building energy consumption
Data traffic/infrastructure
Waste management
Office lease agreements (LEED/BREEAM or equivalent)

People

Diversity & Inclusion
Social conditions
Employee competence development
Employee well-being

Prosperity
Economic growth through paid taxes
Job creation
Corporate Social Responsibility (EY Ripples)
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Global governance

Ernst & Young Oy (EY Finland) is a 
member firm of Ernst & Young Global 
Limited. EY companies are located in 
more than 150 countries with 312,000 
employees. This makes EY one of the 
world’s largest audit and consulting 
companies in the world. Within EY, the 
partners have a special responsibility, 
partly as active auditors and consultants 
and partly as leaders of the business.

The professionals in the service of EY 
Finland hold more than 99% of the 
equity of the company (<50 percent of 
the voting value). EY Europe SCRL, an 
audit firm registered in Belgium, has 
the voting control of EY Finland.  
In connection with Brexit, a new EY 
Europe SCRL was established in Belgium.

During a transitional period, the former 
Ernst & Young Europe LLP and the new 
EY Europe SCRL existed in parallel. 
However, the holding in Ernst & Young 
Oy has been transferred to EY Europe 
SCRL. EY Europe SCRL has no right to 
dividends or rights to the capital of 
Ernst & Young Oy.

Globally, EY is divided into different 
geographical areas and EY Finland 
belongs to the Nordics region. As a 
global organization, EY has a common 
shared strategy. This supports 
exceptional client service wherever EY 
clients do business.

The EY Global Executive is the most 
senior EY body and brings together 
EY leadership functions, services and 
geographies.

Principles of Governance 
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Principles of Governance
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Principles of Governance

Global Executive

As a global organization EY has a common shared strategy. 
This supports exceptional client service wherever in the world 
EY clients do business.

The EY Global Executive is the most senior EY body and brings 
together EY leadership functions, services and geographies.

Carmine Di Sibio 
EY Global Chairman and CEO

Andy Baldwin 
EY Global Managing Partner – Client Service

Steve Krouskos 
EY Global Managing Partner – Client Service

Trent Henry 
EY Global Vice Chair – Talent

Jay Nibbe 
EY Global Vice Chair – Markets

Hank Prybylski 
EY Global Vice Chair – Transformation 

Nicola Morini Bianzino 
EY Global Chief Technology Officer

Marie-Laure Delarue 
EY Global Assurance Vice Chair

Errol Gardner 
EY Global Vice Chair – Consulting

Kate Barton 
EY Global Vice Chair – Tax

Andrea Guerzoni 
EY Global Vice Chair, Strategy and Transactions (SaT)

Kelly Grier 
EY Americas Managing Partner

Patrick Winter 
EY Asia-Pacific Area Managing Partner

Julie Linn Teigland 
EY EMEIA Area Managing Partner

Alice Chan 
Chair, EY Global Accounts Committee

Rajiv Memani 
Chair, EY Global Emerging Markets Committee

Jack Chan 
Emerging Markets Committee Member

Jessie Qin 
Member firm Partner on rotation

Who we work with
We work with more than 200,000 clients in more that 150 
countries, from start-ups to multinationals across all sectors, 
helping them meet their most pressing challenges.

As industries converge, they create new value and 
opportunities for business. EY helps organizations identify and 
capitalize on these new opportunities.

Navigating this fast-changing environment requires agility and 
fresh thinking. As we reinvent how we work, live and play, EY is 
helping clients embrace industry disruption as an opportunity.
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Principles of Governance

Nordic governance

EY Finland works in an integrated Nordic organization that 
includes Sweden, Denmark, Finland, Norway and Iceland. Our 
Regional Leadership Team (RLT) is responsible for the regional 
governance, strategy execution and performance. The RLT is 
led by our regional managing partner and includes our Nordic 
country managing partners, service line leaders and market 
segment leaders.

Sustainability governance

It requires a combined effort to drive the sustainability agenda 
across EY Nordics and execute our NextWave strategy. In 
order to ensure continuous internal work on sustainability by 
using the synergies from EY’s external service offerings, a 
Nordic sustainability core team was established in 2020. The 
team is led by the EY Nordic Sustainability Lead and includes 
sustainability representatives in each Nordic country.

The Nordic Sustainability Lead is responsible for the 
development of sustainability as a whole and reports to the 
Nordics Sustainability Steering Committee which consists of 
regional managing partner, Nordic COO, Nordic sustainability 
lead and the CEO of each country. The Nordic Sustainability 
Steering Committee is responsible for the management of 
sustainability in EY and monitors the progress toward the 
sustainability goals each quarter.

The sustainability representatives of each country are working 
closely with both the Nordic sustainability lead and the country 
leadership teams to discuss the sustainability agenda, targets 
and actions. Each country has developed a sustainability 
roadmap aligned with the Nordic sustainability agenda and 

objectives to guide the sustainability work at a country 
level. EY Finland’s board of directors annually evaluates 
the sustainability work and ensures that it is performed in 
accordance with the appliable laws or regulations and internal 
policies.

Local governance

As a part of our Nordic organization, the local service line 
activities are conducted geographically in regions held 
together by EY Finland and the Nordic management. The 
purpose of this organization is to increase the proximity to 
local markets, strengthen cooperation, and enable strong local 
leadership, while benefiting from the Nordic management 
resources and synergies. The capabilities and perspectives of 
board members are important for making robust decisions on 
an ongoing basis.

In EY Finland the Country Coordination Team (CCT) is 
responsible of the day-to-day leadership of the company. 
Country Coordination Team ensures that the decisions of 
Regional Leadership Team are implemented in the company’s 
operation.

Jesper Almström, Regional Managing Partner, 
joined EY in 2001 and since then he has held various 
leadership roles, including most recently – Nordic 
TAS Leader and Country Managing Partner (CMP) in 
Sweden.
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Principles of Governance

Mikko Järventausta (born 1970) has been a member of the Board since 2015. He is also the Assurance Leader 
for EY Finland. Mikko holds a Master of Science (Economics) degree from Turku School of Economics and 
Business Administration and is also an Authorized Public Accountant. He has over 25 years of experience in 
auditing services. He has worked at EY since 1995.

Ulla Nykky (born 1961) has been member of the Board since 2018. She is also an Assurance Partner at EY 
Finland. Ulla holds a master’s degree in economics from the University of Jyväskylä. She is also an Authorized 
Public Accountant. 

Mikko Äijälä (born 1976) has been member of the Board since 2018. He is also the Country Managing Partner for 
EY Finland and the Regional Strategy and Transactions Managing Partner for EY Nordics. Mikko holds a master’s 
degree in Accounting from Turku School of Economics and Business Administration. Mikko has over 20 years of 
experience in both domestic and foreign transaction advisory services. He has been with EY since 2004, prior to 
which he held various leadership positions outside EY.

Mikko Järventausta

Ulla Nykky

Mikko Äijälä

Heikki Ilkka

Board of Directors, EY Finland

Heikki Ilkka (born 1970) has been member of the Board and Chair of the Board since 2018. He is also the 
Regional Assurance Managing Partner for EY Nordics. Heikki holds a Master of Science (Economics) degree from 
Turku School of Economics and Business Administration and he is also an Authorized Public Accountant. He 
has over 20 years of experience and has held various leadership positions at EY and outside EY within financial 
services. 
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Principles of Governance

Board Skills Matrix Heikki Ilkka  Mikko Järventausta Ulla Nykky Mikko Äijälä 

Senior Leadership

Finance, accounting or Financial 
reporting

Regulatory environment

Risk Management

Client Experience

Technology

Strategic Planning / Operations

Sustainability

Lean

Global Business / International 
affairs

Human Resources

Gender

Male Female 6-9 yrs 0-5 yrs

40-49 >50

Board Tenure

Age Diversity
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Mikko Järventausta is the Assurance Leader at EY Finland and a member of the board of executive at EY Nordic 
Assurance. He has worked at EY since 1995. Mikko is an Authorized Public Accountant, and he has over 25 years 
of experience in auditing services. Mikko is dedicated to pursuing targets that create long-term value for various 
stakeholders.

Osmo Valovirta is a Partner, Audit Finland Deputy Leader and Local Region Leader at EY Finland. He joined EY in 
2001. From small family-owned businesses to listed companies and multinational groups, Osmo has almost 20 
years of experience in auditing services and advising clients in special circumstances such as transactions and 
M&As. He is a firm believer in transparent financial reporting and trustworthy advisory services when it comes to 
companies’ success.  

Lasse is the Strategy and Transactions Leader at EY Finland and Talent Leader for transaction professionals in 
the Nordic Region. He is also a member of the Strategy and Transactions Nordic Leadership team and currently 
advises mainly multinational corporate clients. He joined EY in 2010 after holding various management 
positions. Lasse has extensive experience in managing demanding M&A activities in various sectors. In his 
cooperation with clients, Lasse aims for value-adding results with positive impacts on the wider community.

Mikko Äijälä is the Country Managing Partner for EY Finland and the Regional Strategy and Transactions 
Managing Partner for EY Nordics. He joined EY in 2004 after holding various positions outside EY. Mikko has over 
20 years of experience in both domestic and foreign transaction advisory services. He has also served in different 
leadership positions during his career at EY. In his work, Mikko promotes diversity and inclusiveness, work-life 
balance and the wellbeing and talent development of EY personnel. 

Principles of Governance

Mikko Järventausta

Osmo Valovirta

Lasse Laurio

Mikko Äijälä

Country Coordination Team, EY Finland
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Kari is the EY Global Telecommunications Tax Leader and an active client service partner for many Finnish 
multinational companies. Accordingly, Kari is the TMT Tax sector leader in EMEIA and Global Tax Telecom Sector 
leader. Before joining EY in 2006 he worked in the Consumer Goods Industry for 12 years in various leadership 
positions. Kari is a passionate and innovative leader who enjoys serving clients and inspiring our people in 
transformation. 

Riku joined EY in 2018 as a Partner and heads the Consulting business for EY Finland. Riku is also member of 
the Consulting Nordic Leadership team. He is an experienced leader with a global perspective having worked 
and lived across continents. He has extensive experience in strategy execution and business and technology 
transformations across various domains. Currently he focuses on supporting multinational clients on creating 
long-term value and executing transformations.

Katariina Jalas is the HR Director at EY Finland and the Nordic HRBP for Strategy and Transactions. She started 
at EY in 2019 with more than 20 years of experience in Human Resources. She is also a qualified Career and 
Leadership Coach. Katariina has held HR positions within the financial services, transportation and consultancy 
sectors. In her strategic HR work, Katariina believes in inclusion, belonging and coaching as the means to create 
and maintain flourishing working environments and healthy, balanced and fulfilling working lives. 

Principles of Governance

Kari Pasanen

Riku Piipari

Katariina Jalas
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Our purpose – Building a better working world
EY is committed to doing its part in building a better working world. We develop outstanding leaders 

and teams who create long-term value for all stakeholders that leads to sustainable, inclusive growth

Our Values – Who we are
People who demonstrate integrity, respect, teaming and inclusiveness

People with energy, enthusiasm and the courage to lead 

People who build relationships based on doing the right thing

Our ambition 
To create long-term value as the world’s most trusted, distinctive professional services organization

We create client value, people value, social value and financial value

Business ethics and integrity

The EY approach to business ethics and integrity is contained 
in the EY Global Code of Conduct and other policies. It is also 
embedded in the EY culture of consultation, training programs 
and internal communications. The EY Global Code of Conduct 
provides a clear set of standards for how EY people behave 
and treat each other at work, how relationships are built 
with colleagues and clients, how services are delivered, and 
how EY upholds and protects our reputation. EY employees 

are required to sign the Code of Conduct annually, and this 
is monitored on an individual level. EY cannot and will not 
tolerate behavior that violates its professional standards or 
is inconsistent with the EY Global Code of Conduct. Examples 
of such behaviors include discrimination, unethical practices, 
financial misconduct, deliberately jeopardizing the quality of 
work or failing to adhere to EY policies. 

All EY employees have signed the 
Code of Conduct in FY21.

Compliance 
FY21

Code of Conduct confirmation

100 %

https://sites.ey.com/sites/GlobalCodeOfConduct/SitePages/Home.aspx
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Principles of Governance

The EY Ethics Hotline provides EY employees, clients 
and others outside of the organization with a means to 
confidentially report activity that may involve unethical or 
improper behavior, and that may be in violation of professional 
standards or otherwise inconsistent with the EY Global Code of 
Conduct. The hotline is operated by an external organization 
that provides confidential and, if desired, anonymous hotline 

reporting services worldwide. When a report comes into the EY 
Ethics Hotline, it receives prompt attention, and appropriate 
individuals from Risk Management, Talent, Legal or other 
functions are involved to address the report. The same 
procedures are followed for matters that are reported outside 
of the EY Ethics Hotline. 

1
Working with one another

4
Maintaining our objectivity and 

independence

2
Working with clients and others

5
Protecting data, information and 

intellectual capital

3
Acting with professional integrity

Our Global Code of Conduct is organized into five categories containing guiding principles 
that should be used by everyone within EY to guide behavior across all areas of our activity.

The EY Global Code of Conduct (the “code”) provides an 
ethical framework for our behaviour. It draws on our shared 
values, and builds on our purpose and our ambition.

https://secure.ethicspoint.com/domain/media/en/gui/6483/index.html
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Anti-corruption and bribery

EY is committed to the fight against corruption in all forms 
and, to affirm this, has established a Global Anti-Bribery 
and Corruption Policy accompanied by an anti-corruption 
compliance program. EY partners and employees are obligated 
to complete an annual training on anti-corruption as part 
of the annual Code of Conduct training. All EYs clients and 
suppliers are assessed according to the same standards.

In order to raise awareness on the fight against corruption, 
we also cooperate with external networks and groups. We are 
part of organizations such as the World Economic Forum (WEF) 
and Transparency International to find ways to address the 
social and economic challenges of our times. In addition, we 
have signed the WEF’s Partnering Against Corruption Initiative 
(PACI). Our commitment involves two measures: on the one 
hand, zero tolerance of bribery and, on the other, developing 
a practical and effective implementation program at a global 
level through our common anti-corruption policies. Locally, 
adaptations are made to cover local legislation.

A steadfast commitment to tackling corruption is not only 
embedded in globally consistent policies and practices, 
including mandatory training on anti-bribery and corruption, 
but in the services we offer our clients. As an example, EY 
Forensics and Integrity services teams help clients strengthen 
their integrity and compliance frameworks. EY has also 
invested in analytics solutions that are integrated parts of 
service offerings to help clients quickly sift millions of lines 

of data in order to highlight anomalies. The last example is 
EY blockchain solutions that help transfer data, currency 
and other assets in an efficient, trustworthy, transparent and 
secure way.

There has not been any incidence of corruption, legal reactions 
to anti-trust and practice of monopoly or fines related to 
violations of laws in FY21.

Competition and anti-trust law compliance 
EY, as a global network, is fully committed to compliance with 
its legal and ethical obligations, including competition law, 
and expects the same of all its partners and employees. The 
global Competition and Anti-Trust Compliance Policy is issued 
in support of the EY Global Code of Conduct’s provisions 
regarding unethical or illegal business practices; compliance 
with laws and regulations and standards; and the need for 
honesty in competitive behavior. More specifically, it reaffirms 
that EY personnel shall not exchange competitively sensitive 
or strategic information with competitors, or take other steps 
intending to impede, or that could have the effect of impeding 
competition in the markets in which EY operates.

Independence 
confirmation 

https://www.weforum.org/communities/partnering-against-corruption-initiative
https://www.weforum.org/communities/partnering-against-corruption-initiative
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Risk, Independence and Compliance 

The EY Global Independence Policy requires EY Finland 
and our people to comply with the independence standards 
applicable to specific engagements. EY Finland and its 
employees consider and evaluate independence with 
regards to various aspects, including financial relationships, 
employment relationships, business relationships, the 
permissibility of services provided to audit clients, applicable 
firm and partner rotation requirements, fee arrangements, 
audit committee preapproval, and partner remuneration and 
compensation. 

Annually, EY Finland is included in an area-wide process to 
confirm compliance with the EY Global Independence Policy 
and process requirements and to report identified exceptions, 
if any. All EY professionals are required to confirm compliance 
with independence policies and procedures at least once 
a year. All EY professionals and partners have confirmed 
compliance in FY21. Our policies and training help avoid any 
non-compliance for EY people.

Risk management underpins sustainable business practices 
and relationships and ultimately helps clients innovate and 
build value and trust with their stakeholders through EY 
services. 

An important element of risk mitigation and management in 
EY is data protection and information security framework. 
We protect information assets, personal data and client 
information through their creation, transmission and storage 
in accordance with the requirements of applicable laws, 
regulations and professional standards.

Independence is also an integral part of the EY Global Code 
of Conduct. Each of us is responsible for our own personal 
independence and the independence of EY. We are mindful of 
our own personal financial interests and EY relationships with 
clients.

We have evaluated our management approach to business 
ethics and anti-corruption/bribery. EY Risk & Independence 
does a thorough job in making sure we comply with laws and 
regulations and our business ethics. We believe that we have 
good practices and processes in place to measure and follow 
up; and we will continue the ongoing work in addition to stay 
abreast with new laws and regulations that applies to EY. 

More information on EY Finland’s independence 
and compliance policies can be found in the yearly 
transparency report. 

Compliance 
FY21

Independence 
confirmation 

Independence 
training 

100 % 100%

https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/fi_fi/pdf/transparency-reports/ey-finland-transparency-report-2021.pdf
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Planet 

In July 2020, EY appointed Steve 
Varley as our first EY Global Vice 
Chair Sustainability. He has since 
been leading our work to accelerate 
EY’s role in helping to drive a more 
sustainable future. In 2020 we were 
carbon neutral. In January 2021 
we announced our updated carbon 
ambition: to become carbon negative 
in 2021 and net zero in 2025.
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Planet

We believe that becoming carbon 
negative in 2021 and net zero in 

2025, reducing our emissions in line 
with a science based target is the 

right ambition to have.

“

Steve Varley 
EY Global Vice Chair Sustainability

In order to work toward net zero, eliminating all avoidable 
emissions, and removing the rest – in 2025, EY Global worked 
with the Science Based Targets initiative to develop and 
validate a science based target to reduce EY’s total emissions 
by 40% across the entire global EY organization. 

This target is aligned to the most ambitious aim of the Paris 
Agreement: to limit a global temperature rise to 1.5°C above 
preindustrial levels.  

To reach the 40% reduction-target EY Global has defined seven 
actions that applies to all of EY including reduction in business 
travel, conversion to clean energy, ambitious targets on 
carbon-reduction technologies and requiring that our largest 
suppliers have set Science Based Targets. 

The global targets oblige us in the Nordic region to work 
toward the same ambitions and implement local measures that 
are in line with the targets.  

Key Nordic measures to meet this ambition are:  

• Reducing business travel emissions by at least 50% by 
FY25 against an FY19 baseline. (Note: EY Global’s action 
target is 35% reduction. EY Nordics’ local emissions from 
electricity is already low compared to the average global 
emissions. Thus, for EY Nordics to meet the 40% target 
compared to FY19 a larger portion of our CO2 reduction will 
come from reduction in business travel.)

• Reducing overall office electricity usage and procuring 100% 
renewable energy for the remaining EY needs 

• Requiring 75% of EY suppliers, by spend, to set 
science-based targets by no later than FY25 

• Reduce overall waste, increase the portion of recycleable 
material and encourage recycling. 

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/sustainability/how-can-carbon-negative-unlock-positive-value-for-the-planet
https://www.ey.com/en_uk/sustainability/how-can-carbon-negative-unlock-positive-value-for-the-planet
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Task Force on Climate related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
In FY21 EY Nordic assessed climate-related risk following 
the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate related 
Financial Disclosures (TCFD). With the TCFD framework 
we assessed climate-related risks and opportunities that is 
impacting EY and how prepared we are to address them.  

This assessment was initiated by the Nordic Sustainability Lead 
who is responsible for the development of sustainability as a 
whole including climate risk management, and reports to the 
Nordics Sustainability Steering Committee which consists of: 
Regional Managing Partner, Nordic COO, Nordic Sustainability 
Lead and each country CEO. The Nordic Sustainability Steering 
Committee is responsible for the management of sustainability 
in EY and monitors the progress towards the sustainability 
goals each quarter. 

Each country has sustainability representatives that are 
working closely with both the Nordic sustainability lead and the 
country leadership teams to discuss the sustainability agenda, 
targets and actions. Each country is developing a sustainability 
roadmap aligned with the Nordic Sustainability agenda and 
objectives to guide the sustainability work at a country level. 
EY Finland Board of Directors annually evaluates that the 
sustainability work is performed in accordance with appliable 
laws/ regulations and internal policies. 

FY21, is the first year EY Finland are applying TCFD 
recommendations, thus this is a start on our TCFD reporting 
journey and we plan to improve our reporting in the coming 
years. The results of the Nordic TCFD assessment will be 
integrated into the EY Nordic risk management procedures. In 
FY22 the EY TCFD assessment will be refreshed and include 
a more detailed and quantitative scenario analysis, which will 
enable more actionable insights. 
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Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions & Energy indirect 
(Scope 2) GHG emissions tCO2

FY19 
(baseline year)

FY20 FY21

Scope 1 Direct emissions  0 0 0

Scope 2 Indirect emissions:

Scope 2 Purchased electricity market based 151,6 134,6 69,1

Scope 2 Purchased electricity location based 77,7 70,6 57,9

Scope 2 Purchased heating location based * 97,7 83,0 83,0

Scope 3 (Other indirect greenhouse gas emissions), tCO2e 

Category 5 Waste generated in operations 24,3 29,6 16,4

Category 6 Business travel 991,5 608,6 64,1

Scope 3 total 1015,8 638,2 80,5

Scope 1 is not reported as our 
facilities are rented and we do not 
own any company vehicles.
The electricity consumed in EY 
Finland was switched to green 
electricity from the beginning of 
February 2021.

*The figures are calculated estimates 
of the emissions based on the actual 
electricity and heating consumption 
figures in Helsinki.
Reductions are mainly due to the 
effect of the COVID-19 pandemic and 
the transition to remote work.

We are currently looking into 
calculating emissions from category 
1, purchased goods and services; 
category 4, upstream transportation 
and distribution; and category 
7, employee commuting, and 
are planning to report on these 
categories in our FY22 report. 
Categories 2,3,8,9,10,11,12,13,14 
and 15 do not apply for EY and thus 
are not reported.

CO2 emissions

GHG emissions 

Even if our environmental impact as a professional services 
company is relatively low, we continuously work toward 
minimizing our environmental impact. Our office buildings and 
business travels, mainly by air, are the primary contributors to 
EY’s carbon footprint, and thereby global climate change. 

Scope 1 Scope 2 (market based) Scope 3 (categories 5 & 6)

Total emissions, t CO2

*Reductions are mainly due to the effect of COVID-19 pandemic and the transition to remote work 
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Business travel

Business travel is the most significant source of our Scope 3 
emissions as well as emissions in general. In order to meet 
the 40% reduction target on CO2, EY has set an action on the 
Nordic level to reduce emissions from busines travel by at least 
50% by 2025 compared to the FY19 baseline.

As the world starts to recover from the COVID-19 pandemic 
and we start travelling again, it is necessary to keep up all the 
good practices from remote working. Guided by our ambition 
to reduce our carbon footprint an inclusive hybrid working 
model was launched in June 2021, with the aim to reduce the 
need for traveling and commuting. We have updated our travel 

policy and guiding all EY employees on when to travel and how 
to travel efficiently. 

Though there was almost no travel in FY21 due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, business travel is on the leadership 
agenda and they support a reduction in overall business 
travel. In FY22 we will make further improvements to the data 
collection process and build a solid data infrastructure and 
reports on emissions which will support our leaders to see 
opportunities and drive action.

Air

Car

Train

* the reduction in travel emissions is mainly due to travel restrictions and remote work caused by the COVID-19 pandemic
Train data for FY21 not available

Business travel, tCO2
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*EY Global retroactively changed the calculation principles for EY air travel. Previously air travel cost was booked and recognized based on person’s location 
whereas now the project owner to which the cost is booked holds the responsibility. Thus, the emissions reported here for FY19 and FY20 do not balance 
to the figures in our FY20 Sustainability report.

FY19 FY20 FY21

469.8 tons 
CO2e

0.0 tons 
CO2e

819.0 tons 
CO2e

Air travel 

Air travel is the most significant contributor to our carbon footprint. At EY, we encourage, also by our Global Environmental 
Statement and our Nordics Travel policy, to leverage technologies, such as videoconferencing in place of travel when possible, 
use travel options that minimize emissions, leverage flexible working arrangements, and design meetings and events that use 
resources efficiently. The primary reason behind the significant decrease in air travel during FY21 was COVID-19. 



FY19 FY20 FY21

Office MWh MWh MWh

Helsinki 391,6 335,0 305,6

Hämeenlinna 1,9 1,9 *

Joensuu 22,7 23,5 *

Jyväskylä 7,5 7,7 *

Kajaani 
(Office closed 31.12.2019)

0,5 0,2 0,0

Kokkola 10,5 10,1 11,0

Kotka 
(Office closed 31.12.2020)

1,4 1,1 0,2

Kouvola 3,1 2,9 2,5

Kuopio 14,4 13,4 10,8

Lahti 18,1 18,1 15,9

Lappeenranta 4,7 4,7 4,7

Oulu * * *

Pietarsaari 4,4 4,4 5,2

Rauma 11,1 10,7 10,0

Rovaniemi 8,5 8,5 *

Salo 1,5 1,4 1,4

Seinäjoki * * *

Tampere 17,2 17,2 14,6

Turku 13,7 14,6 *

Vaasa 10,2 6,1 *

Varkaus * * *

Ylivieska 0,7 0,8 *

*Rounded estimate of 
consumption based on 
FTEs for the offices 
where electricity is 
included in rent 22 20 60,0

Total 565,7 502,3 442,0
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Offices and buildings  
EY’s facility management function in all offices in the Nordics 
region has been outsourced to ISS Facility Service. We 
collaborate to reduce EY’s environmental impact.

During FY21, EY Finland had 20 offices, with a combined gross 
area of approximately 11,600 gross square meters. Most of the 
premises are small, less than 500 square meters, excluding the 
headquarters in Helsinki. The premises of EY offices are rented, 
with cooling, heating and water included in the rent. EY pays for 
electricity based on consumption in half of the offices.

However, in the other half of the offices (Hämeenlinna, Joensuu, 
Jyväskylä, Oulu, Rovaniemi, Seinäjoki, Turku, Vaasa, Varkaus 
and Ylivieska), electricity is included in the rent, and therefore, 
the data is not available. However, this does not significantly 
impact the total office electricity consumption since all these 
offices are small and only about 12% of EY people in Finland are 
located in them.

As part of EY’s emission reduction targets, EY Finland switched 
to renewable energy in February 2021. Thus, all the energy 
consumed at EY offices (except for the smaller offices where 
EY doesn’t have its own contract for electricity) has been green 
since February 2021. 

In FY21 as well as FY20, electricity consumption was also 
affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and remote work. Thus, 
not all reductions are due to conscious actions to reduce energy 
consumption.

All our new leases in Finland ensure that the buildings we 
move into will be among the best with respect to the climate 
and environment, i.e., LEED/BREEAM-certified (or equivalent). 
Currently the offices in Helsinki and Tampere are LEED Gold 
certified. 

Electricity consumption
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EY House 

EY Finland’s main office in Helsinki, called “EY House”, is the 
home office for approximately 80% of employees in EY Finland. 
The EY House was built in 2014 and it is LEED Gold-certified 
in Building Design and Construction as well as in Building 
Operations and Maintenance. 

Continuous efforts are being made to reduce the 
environmental impact of our business. We strive to be more 
energy efficient, produce less waste and use less water.

Electricity & district heating (MWh)

Water consumption FY21 m3
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*Estimate for the whole country based on actual water consumption in Helsinki.
Reduction in water consumption is largely due to increased remote work caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
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Waste (t) FY21

*Estimates for the whole country based on actual waste amounts in Helsinki Office

* There was an error in the waste data in our FY20 report and the June 2020 waste data was missing. 
The figure has been corrected in this report and the missing data has been added.

Waste management

Together with property owners and other partners, we work 
actively to increase the amount of recycled and source-sorted 
waste. We have a plan in place to improve our waste-sorting 
system during the next fiscal year. In FY21 and FY20, however, 

the reduction in waste was mainly due to the COVID-19 
pandemic and remote work. 

23,2
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3,3

12,7
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FY19 (baseline) FY20 FY21

Biowaste 32,6 28,8 23,2

Enegy waste 14,4 14,9 8,4

Glass 2,6 2,4 2,6

Metal 1,3 1,3 1,5

Plastic 0,0 0,0 0,2

Hazardous waste 0,1 0,0 0,3

Magazines and advertisements 2,1 2,1 1,5

Cardboard 9,0 8,0 3,3

Mixed waste 15,2 10,3 12,7

Wood 0,1 0,0 0,6

Security plastic 5,1 12,4 0,5

Security paper 0,1 0,1 2,0

82,7 80,3 56,8

Waste t

Waste FY19 (baseline)

Waste FY20

Waste FY21

Non-recycled Recycled

58%

53%

61%

42%

47%

39%

Totalt waste
82,7

Totalt waste
80,3

Totalt waste
56,8 
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Enterprise technology 

EY’ s enterprise technology (ET) is an enabler for performing 
high quality work while reducing travel. At the same time EY 
acknowledges that data traffic and its existence on the internet 
also consumes energy and needs to be taken into account 
when we look at EY’s carbon footprint as a whole. EY has 
therefor initiated the work to map our enterprise technology’s 
role in sustainability, including its net carbon footprint. The 
first result of this work is expected to be released during FY22.

Responsible supply chain 

As EY is a service organization, our supply chain is not that 
extensive. Our main supply by spend is professional services. 
Other large supply is IT equipment, mobile devices, office 
furniture, real estate and business premises services and 
health services. 

We have long-term contracts with our suppliers, and we aspire 
to develop our supply to a more sustainable direction. For 
example, we have a good dialogue and cooperation between 
our real estate and business premises services supplier and 
our facility management to find more sustainable solutions. We 
also have contracts to recycle all used IT equipment. 

We have set a goal requiring suppliers covering 75% of EY 
spend to set an SBTi approved carbon-reduction target by 
FY25. The initiative starts in FY22 with providing training to 
our procurement teams and then reaching out to all major 
suppliers to discuss the journey toward alignment with SBTi. 

We will collaborate with all suppliers to help them on their 
journeys to SBTi accreditation and the decarbonization of 
the products and services we procure from them. By working 
with suppliers and encouraging them to work with us, we will 
further multiply the impact of EY’s carbon negative position. 

EY is also supporting our clients on this journey. Climate 
Change & Sustainability Services (CCaSS) helps companies to 
understand the risk and opportunities arising from climate and 
sustainability developments. 
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Our employees are our greatest resource. 
Their growth — in knowledge, prosperity 
and well-being — is central to the success 
of our organization. 

At EY, our people are vital in realizing our purpose of building 
a better working world. Our exceptional people address the 
opportunities and challenges our clients face, and for them 
to perform at their best, we want to provide our people with 
exceptional experiences by:

• Having a culture that is diverse and inclusive

• Developing our people’s skills for the future

• Looking after our people’s health and wellbeing

People 
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Diversity and Inclusion (D&I) 

Building a diverse and inclusive workforce
Diversity, equity and inclusiveness are core to who we are and 
how we work. We hold a collective commitment to foster an 
environment where all differences are valued, practices are 
equitable and everyone experiences a sense of belonging — 
where people are inspired to team and lead inclusively in their 
interactions every day. 

With a diverse workforce, we are better equipped to utilize the 
power of different opinions, perspectives, knowledge, abilities, 
and cultural references to help EY clients tackle their toughest 
challenges. We work with diversity and inclusion continuously 
in order to give all employees equal conditions for their 
individual career development and we believe this promotes 
the highest performing teams. We are convinced that this 
creates business value and a sustainable organization.

To demonstrate our commitment, the Global Executive (GE), 
EY’s highest leadership body, has signed the Global Executive 
Diversity & Inclusion Statement. Not only does this reinforce 
that D&I is a key business lever, it also ensures that we hold 
ourselves accountable for progress, starting with our actions 
at the top. 

To drive consistent progress around the world we use the D&I 
Roadmap and Culture Change Continuum, EY’s approach and 
methodology for D&I that sets out our journey. The roadmap 
is brought to life by the EY Global Diversity and Inclusiveness 
Steering Committee (GDISC), co-chaired by EY Global 
Chairman and CEO, Carmine Di Sibio, and EY Global Vice Chair 
— Diversity & Inclusiveness, Karyn Twaronite.

At the same time, we recognize that we have a particular 
challenge when it comes to attracting and retaining female 
professionals and leaders.

Gender balance in business
We know from our recruitment statistics that we hire 
approximately 50/50 men and women for our junior ranks. 
But at senior levels, we see fewer women, and we work to 
overcome the challenge of retaining our female employees 
long enough for them to make it to the partner level.

What we measure 
Our overall priority to achieve gender equality at all levels is to 
expand and move forward, and we work to ensure all activities 
promote growth of diverse talent pools.

The targets we set are: 

• Promotion rates should be representative of the pool they 
are coming from

• External hiring should not dilute our current talent pools

• On average between years at least 30% of new internal 
partners appointed should be women

• Over time the share of women direct admit partners should 
be 50% 

Gender Split Total working Population incl. Interns

All 2019 2019% 2020 2020% 2021 2021%

Woman 462 50% 460 48% 460 49%

Men 455 50% 497 52% 485 51%

Total 917 957 945

https://www.ey.com/en_gl/diversity-inclusiveness/global-executive-diversity-inclusion-statement
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Women in leadership 
In FY21, five people were promoted to the partner level in EY 
Finland and this year, all of them have been women. Our goal 
for the coming years is that at least 30% of internal partner 
promotions are women. We also hired one person to join us 
directly at the partner level and that person was a woman. 
Our goal is that in the long run approximately 50% of direct 
admitted partners are women.

Our overall goal is to have even gender 
distribution (40% - 60% share either way) 
in EY Finland.
Our Board of Directors has 25% women. As a partner-
driven firm, we define our partner group as “other levels of 
management.” This year, we improved our gender balance at 

the partner level and increased the share of female partners 
to 32% (from 21% last year). To ensure the optimal foundation 
for partner promotions among women and a strong pipeline of 
talent, we continue to work long term to ensure we have more 
women at all levels of our organization. We are also looking 
more closely into our various actions and programs to ensure 
progress in this area. In our ranks below the partner level, we 
maintain the level or see an increase this year. The share of 
women among Associate Partners is 50% (up from 46%) and 
the share of women among Senior Managers is 39% (the same 
level). 

Gender Split Leadership (Manager, Assistant Director, Senior Manager, Associate Director, Director & Partner)

All 2019 2019% 2020 2020% 2021 2021%

Woman 143 44% 153 44% 165 45%

Men 181 56% 197 56% 199 55%

Total 324 350 364

FY21 All Ranks 

Client Serving 

Rank Name Women Headcount  % Men Headcount % Total Headcount

Partner/Principal 16 32,00% 34 68,00% 50

Associate Partner 13 50,00% 13 50,00% 26

Senior Manager 47 38,84% 74 61,16% 121

Manager 73 51,05% 70 48,95% 143

Senior Associate 112 49,12% 116 50,88% 228

Associate 132 48,18% 142 51,82% 274

Intern 24 51,06% 23 48,94% 47
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Fair representation in promotions 
We work to reflect fair representation in promotion rates so 
we ensure the strongest possible talent pool for promotions to 
the partnership. Therefore, we set female promotion targets to 
ensure that promotion rates are representative of the pool that 
they are coming from.

Total Promotions per gender 

All 2019 2019% 2020 2020% 2021 2021%

Woman 75 53% 61 41% 77 46%

Men 67 47% 88 59% 90 54%

Total 142 149 167
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No dilution in recruitments
In recruitments, we work towards ensuring no dilution, which 
means that external hiring should not dilute our current talent 
pools. To ensure that new recruitments support the targets in 
diversity and inclusion we have set Nordic female recruitment 
targets for each rank. Our recruitment for the past years has 
been quite balanced.

Recruitments
EY is an attractive employer for business and technology 
students and professionals alike. In our communication to 
potential employees, we convey that at EY we offer equal 
opportunities for both men and women and that we seek 
to attract more women to our business. We know that our 
recruitment efforts are an important means to meet our goal 
and therefore, we set targets for the share of women we hire 
to ensure external hires do not dilute our talent pools.

Activities to support more female leaders
We have several activities in place to build a more diverse 
workforce, including steps to increase the share of women in 
leadership. Some of these include:

 Stronger process for parental leave and re-entry

Balancing family and work can be challenging, and we seek to 
ensure a strong process for re-entry after maternity/paternity 
leave, which experience shows us is a difficult transition, 
especially for women. We offer one-to-one Family Transition 
Coaching to those starting or returning from their parental 
leave. Additionally, we have set up conversation guides that 
include suggested conversation topics, such as workload 
and tasks, ambitions and suggested times for follow-up 
conversations. Finally, we have set up workshops to share 
relevant data and inspiration for improving conversations 
between employees and their counsellor and manager.

 Career watch

We offer a program wherein EY women are offered a sponsor 
who helps the participant expand their network, exchange 
experiences and gain perspectives, leading to both personal 
and professional development.

 Navigator workshops

These workshops are targeted at women around the senior/
manager level and cover topics such as career development, 
work-life balance, personal branding, self-awareness, etc.

 Female Networks

EY also has internal networks for women, which enable the 
exchange of experiences and networking.

 Unconscious bias training

We also regularly conduct unconscious bias training workshop 
for partners and leaders.

 Inspiring more women to join EY

 Corporate Finance Woman of the year 

The EY Corporate Finance Woman of the Year is a global 
competition that recognizes talented women currently 
studying at university level or equivalent with the potential to 
have a fulfilling career in EY Strategy and Transactions.
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Age breakdown

As much as 41% of EY Finland’s 
employees are under 30 years old.  
Many employees come to EY during their studies or just 
after graduating or at the early stages of their careers. As an 

employer of entry-level employees, we have a responsibility 
to ensure that our employees are developed and equipped 
with hard and soft skills, which will provide a successful 
working future. We do this by focusing on our employees’ skills 
and career development and their well-being in the face of 
sometimes challenging workloads. 

Under 30 years 30-50 years Over 50 years Total

Rank % Headcount % Headcount % Headcount Headcount

Client Serving

Partner/Principal 0,00% 3,28% 31 2,01% 19 50

Executive Director 0,00% 1,80% 17 0,95% 9 26

Senior Manager 0,00% 10,91% 103 2,01% 19 122

Manager 2,12% 20 12,50% 118 0,53% 5 143

Senior 11,44% 108 12,50% 118 0,42% 4 230

Staff/Assistant 21,50% 203 7,20% 68 0,00% 271

Intern (CS) 4,66% 44 0,32% 3 0,00% 47

Admin

Administrative Lead 0,00% 0,21% 2 0,00% 2

Administrative Advanced 0,00% 0,00% 0,11% 1 1

Administrative 
Intermediate

0,21% 2 0,21% 2 0,00% 4

Administrative Entry 0,11% 1 0,00% 0,00% 1

CBS

Director 0,00% 0,32% 3 0,32% 3 6

Associate Director 0,00% 0,21% 2 0,11% 1 3

Assistant Director 0,00% 1,27% 12 0,21% 2 14

Supervising Associate 0,21% 2 0,42% 4 0,32% 3 9

Senior Associate 0,11% 1 1,06% 10 0,00% 11

Associate 0,32% 3 0,11% 1 0,00% 4

40,68% 384 52,33% 494 6,99% 66 944

Age Headcount %

Under 30 384 40,68%

30-50 494 52,33%

Over 50 years 66 6,99%

Grand Total 944 100,00%

All employees – Client servers and Core Business Services. 
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Headcount

Contract Type 2019 2020 2021

Headcount % Headcount % Headcount %

Full-Time 832 90,3% 876 91,1% 869 92,1%

Part-Time 89 9,7% 86 8,9% 75 7,9%

Grand Total 921 100,0% 962 100,0% 944 100,0%

Employment contract and type 
Most of our employees work on a full-time permanent contract 
but we also have employees on temporary and part-time 
contracts. Many of our employees first start working with us as 
trainees and the trainee contract is usually temporary. 

After the trainee period is over, many of our trainees continue 
working with us on a permanent basis. All of our contracts are 
offered as full-time, but we offer flexibility and our employees 
may work on part-time contract if they wish. For example, 
many of our employees are students and have not graduated 
yet. They work on part-time contracts so as to continue their 
studies.

Our contracts are drawn up on the Contracts of Employment 
Act and Working Hours (Restriction) Act. We do not have a 
collective bargaining agreement in our field of business.  
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Pay equality

It is the individual employees’ role, competencies, level of 
experience, efforts and performance that dictate the pay level. 
All employees are part of the same individual follow-up system 
and performance assessment process where we make sure to 
align employees in comparable roles.

In the table below, you can see the average pay level for men 
and women on different ranks.

We hire young people at the entry level at the exact same pay 
regardless of gender and monitor statistics/data to ensure 
comparability throughout the entire career. We believe that the 
differences in pay level that do exist are a result of variations 

in education, experiences, performance, efforts and role in the 
company – and not a question of gender, ethnic background or 
any other discriminating factors. The differences in working 
hours also play a role.

Client Serving

FY19 FY20 FY21

Rank Female Male Female Male Female Male

Executive Director 101% 99% 97% 103% 99% 101%

Senior Manager 97% 102% 99% 101% 97% 102%

Manager 100% 100% 101% 99% 99% 101%

Senior Associate 99% 101% 100% 100% 99% 101%

Associate 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

CBS

FY19 FY20 FY21

Rank Female Male Female Male Female Male

Director 100% 101% 99% 102% 105% 95%

Associate Director 93% 114% 91% 109% 91% 109%

Assistant Director 99% 103% 98% 105% 100% 99%

Supervising Associate 98% 116% 98% 114% 98% 115%

Senior Associate 99% 103% 99% 102% 96% 116%

Associate 99% 109% 97% 112% 99% 106%

Intern 100% 0% 100% 0% 100% 0%
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Human rights and labor 

At EY, we believe upholding human rights is fundamental to 
our purpose of building a better working world, and in 2021, 
we signed a Human Rights Statement on global level to 
demonstrate our commitment to uphold and promote human 
rights.

The EY Global Code of Conduct, which is anchored in our 
core values and beliefs, provides the ethical and behavioral 
framework to guide the business decisions we make every 
day. Our Global Human Rights Statement builds on our Code 
to reflect our understanding of the fundamental rights of all 
human beings and our commitment to promote respect for 
those rights.

We draw our understanding of these rights from the Universal 
Declaration of Human Rights, its related treaties and 
declarations, and the broader ethical reasoning behind their 
development. Our approach to respecting and upholding 
human rights is informed by the United Nations Guiding 
Principles on Business and Human Rights, which, among other 
things, state that businesses have a responsibility to:

• Avoid causing or contributing to adverse human rights 
impacts through their own activities, and to address such 
impacts when they occur

• Seek to prevent or mitigate adverse human rights impacts 
that are directly linked to their operations, products or 
services by their business relationships, even if they have 
not contributed to those impacts

In addition to avoiding and mitigating potential harm, we seek 
to proactively support and promote human rights for the wider 
benefit of the communities in which we operate. Our objective 
is to enhance the awareness and consideration of human rights 
across the EY network in the interests of all EY people and 
those with whom they interact.

The rights of all EY people
We are committed to upholding the human rights of EY 
people. Specifically, we strive to respect the following human 
rights, in accordance with the EY Global Inclusion and Non-
Discrimination policy, that we have identified to be most 
salient to EY people and in our work environment:

• Health and safety — The right of all people to enjoy a 
physically and psychologically safe work environment

• Labor rights — The right of all people to just and favorable 
terms of employment

• Diversity, equity and inclusiveness — The right of all people to 
be respected and valued for their differences, with equitable 
opportunities and outcomes, in an inclusive environment 
where all can thrive

Impact of client engagements
As a professional services organization, we recognize our role 
in the communities in which EY member firms operate. EY 
member firms consider not only whether they can perform 
an engagement, but whether they should perform that 
engagement. While the specific role of EY may be complex 
and indirect, it can still be consequential, and we have a 
responsibility to better understand how our services, and the 
clients receiving them, interact with human rights and the 
public interest at an individual and systemic level.

Rightsholders in our supply chains
Our responsibility to respect human rights extends beyond the 
direct operations of EY member firms into their supply chains, 
where we seek to influence the broad adoption of labor rights 
and maintain an active view of the human rights performance 
of our direct and indirect suppliers. In accordance with the 
EY Global Supplier Code of Conduct, this includes taking steps 
to understand the risks of human rights violations in our 
supply chains, validating our assessment through supplier 
engagement, and supporting suppliers to reduce risk and 
remediate adverse human rights impacts.

All main suppliers for EY in Finland are 
required to sign our Supplier Code of 
Conduct, and everyone did so in FY21.

https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_gl/topics/procurement/ey-supplier-code-of-conduct-may-2018.pdf
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Employee health and wellbeing

Finding the right work-life balance
Achieving the right work-life balance can be a significant 
challenge in today’s society. We work to build resilience and 
support our people in achieving greater balance between their 
career and private lives while minimizing stressful working 
situations. 

This work is central to ensure our people’s performance is 
consistent and excellent and meets the high expectations of 
our clients in a competitive environment. We are very aware 
of the need to manage the talent and energy of our people 
smartly. By adding wellbeing as one of the key traits of our 
transformative leadership model, we take this work a step 
further.

Our employees’ daily work consists mostly of performing 
high-cognition tasks in an office- or home-based environment, 
producing solutions for our clients using technology and 
attending client meetings in person or online. Therefore, the 
main health challenges include musculoskeletal issues (caused 
by computer work) and mental health-related issues (caused by 
high workloads and demands of the industry).

We work to support mental health and reduce stress by:

• Monitoring working hours, encouraging counselor/
counselee conversations and holding awareness sessions/
communications. In FY21, EY Finland implemented the new 
Working Time Act regulations and trained our employees 
and team leaders in our new process which reviews working 
hours three times a year, ensuring that after busier 
workloads there is time for recovery. 

• We offer low-threshold mental health coaching online 
through a third-party service provider

• We have regular Wellbeing Days with various speaker 
sessions and exercise and mindfulness classes (May 2021)

• To ensure the physical health of our employees, we offer 
home office equipment to ensure good ergonomically 
correct working conditions when working from home. We 
offer employee sport clubs and healthy food in our canteens. 
We have introduced an app with short physical exercises 
to avoid especially back and neck pain. In the office, all our 
workstations comply with health and safety regulations and 
we offer one-to-one ergonomic assessments.

Hybrid Working Model
In 2021, after more than a year with remote work and virtual 
collaboration, EY launched a new hybrid working model in 
the Nordics, no longer limiting anyone by time or space, 
but empowering everyone by flexibility, technology and our 
collaborative culture.

This is a big step into the future way of working, but we know 
that one size does not fit all. We have the latest technology 
in place to support us with this transformation and tasks, 
projects and workflows combined with client needs and 
collaboration in teams will be the key drivers when our people 
are designing their own EY experience as they decide when, 
how and from where they want to work.

https://www.ey.com/fi_fi/news/2021/06/ey-siirtyy-hybridityomalliin
https://www.ey.com/fi_fi/news/2021/06/ey-siirtyy-hybridityomalliin
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Listening to our people
In March 2020, our People Surveys went from being conducted annually to being carried out in shorter “pulses” on a quarterly 
basis to allow for flexibility in questions and timing in the surveys and at the same time allow us to stay updated on our people’s 
well-being on a more recurring basis. 

For employee well-being, we especially focus on two measures in our People Surveys: 

Continuous increase in 
Engagement Index level 
(currently 67%) 

80% of our people 
say they have an 
exceptional experience 
at EY by 2025 
(currently at 64%) 
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Health and safety committee 
At EY, we have a Health and Safety Committee whose mission 
it is to promote and further advance safety and wellbeing 
at work. The committee is elected for a two-year period. It 
regularly gathers to discuss topics requiring special attention 
and brings forward the issues raised by employees in the 
organization and to the management.

Occupational health care and insurance 
EY complies with an early caring model for maintaining and 
enhancing our employees’ competence and work capacity. 
Managers are provided with training in the model that aims to 
recognize risks related to work ability (i.e., physical conditions, 
work overload, stressful life situations) in the early stages by 
regularly following sickness absence.

EY employees in Finland are covered by a statutory pension 
scheme which includes pension savings as well as insurance 
for long term incapacity.

EY’s extensive insurance package aims to cover the health 
and safety of all employees in the work environment as well 
as during free time. The package includes pension insurance, 
industrial accident insurance with remote working insurance, 
accident insurance for EY club activities and travel insurance 

for domestic and international work travel. In addition, it 
covers free access to medical specialist consultation, including 
physiotherapists, chiropractors, psychologists, etc.

EY also provides a preventive health check 
every three years for employees over the 
age of 45.

The sickness absence rate of EY employees 
is 1.8%, with the average number of sick 
days taken being 4.6 days per person in 
a year.
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Training provided 
At EY, it is our people who deliver exceptional client services. 
It is our people who make EY a great place to work and have 
successful careers. We want to inspire and motivate our 
people, not only through learning, experience and coaching, 
but also by building strong relations and lasting networks 
across service lines and countries. This helps them form a 
lasting foundation for a successful career, development and 
growth. 

Developing the skills of the future
In today’s fast changing world, it’s more important than ever 
for EY people to never stop learning. We invest in our people 
to help them build the right skills and experiences. Staying 
relevant keeps them ahead in the market and drives delivery 
of exceptional client service, helping our clients achieve 
sustainable and inclusive growth.

Today, we have a unique opportunity, by mixing virtual and 
traditional learning, to create new, hybrid learning experiences 
across new technological mediums. In FY21, we provided our 
people in Finland with 49,505 hours of formal learning, which 
translates to 52 hours of training delivered on average per 
employee. Moreover, our people also receive external training, 
complemented by coaching. The total learning investment in 
FY21 amounted to 376,000 euros. 

We are increasingly investing in learning and encourage 
our employees to develop new skills. We have more than 
230 externally acknowledged and validated short training 
programs and certificates called EY badges. EY Badges are 
awarded at learning, bronze, silver, gold and platinum levels, 
covering industry sectors, digital, analytics, blockchain, AI, 
cybersecurity and transformative leadership. Our Finnish 
employees were awarded 93 EY Badges in FY21through this 
online learning platform.

As part of the NextWave strategy, EY also launched an 
opportunity for EY’s employees to complete an MBA degree. 
EY offers the EY Tech MBA, free of charge to EY employees. 
This Executive MBA debuted in July 2020 and is awarded by 
the fully accredited Hult International Business School.

Enabling better conversations
Formal learning forms a baseline that is complemented 
and enhanced through mentoring, coaching and daily work 
experience. A couple of years ago, EY launched the LEAD 
process to ensure that all employees are given frequent 
feedback.

The LEAD process assures that every employee has, at least 
three times a year, a conversation with their counselor to 
discuss their career aspirations, feedback and development 
needs.

Discrimination and harassment incidents

Unethical behavior even by a few has a negative impact on our 
culture, reputation and attractiveness as an employer as well 
as our credibility as a service provider.

EY has zero tolerance for unethical behavior, and our sanctions 
mirror the gravity of the offence. This is reflected in our 
Global Inclusion and Non-Discriminatory Policy.

At EY, all partners and employees have a personal obligation to 
speak up if they ever observe behavior that they believe does 
not live up to the principles in our Code of Conduct, and the 
Leadership team will act on any reports based on legitimate 
concerns that should be investigated.

One case is one too many, but our concern is also the cases 
which we may not learn about. This is why we communicate 
our policies, inform how to report incidents as well as offer 
training for our people and leaders. We have also established a 
Nordic Ethics Board who handles reports of unethical behavior.

Evaluation of management approach
We have evaluated our management approach to diversity & 
inclusion, employee competence/development, employee well-
being and social conditions. Like many other organizations, 
2021 has been a different year with new challenges due 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. At the same time EY Nordics 
went through a significant organizational and digital change 
which impacted the employees. We think the leadership has 
shown ability to be agile and meet the unplanned demands 
of the organization and at the same time keep a drive ahead, 
including work on diversity & inclusion and learning.

With EY Badges, our people can gain digital credentials in 
future-focused skills, such as data visualisation, data science, 
design thinking, cybersecurity, artificial intelligence and much 

more to help clients navigate what’s next.

https://www.ey.com/en_gl/diversity-inclusiveness/global-executive-diversity-inclusion-statement
https://sites.ey.com/sites/GlobalCodeOfConduct/SitePages/Home.aspx
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Businesses have impact on, and benefit from, economic and 
social prosperity in myriad ways, and it is widely recognized that 
businesses cannot succeed in a failing society. Furthermore, a 
company’s value is increasingly reflected in the off-balance sheet 
intangible assets and value drivers associated with economic and 
social prosperity.

To demonstrate our commitment to building strong, transformative and inclusive economies for 
the long term, in line with the SDGs, we use these three interrelated themes from the existing 
reporting standards and framework landscape to help distinguish the most important aspects of 
prosperity:

• Employment and wealth generation 

• Innovation of better products and services 

• Community and social vitality 

Absolute number and rate of employment 

The total number of employees in FY21 was 944, and the total hires by gender were 111 female 
hires (46%) and 129 male hires (54%). The turnover rate was 19,8%, and the turnover rate by 
gender was 18,4% for female employees and 21,1% for male employees.

Prosperity  
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Prosperity 
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Economic contribution 

Economic result
EY Finland contributes economic value to society through 
job creation and our services to build a better working world. 
Additionally, EY Finland contributes to the funding of public 
services through tax payments.

EY Finland’s tax footprint consists mainly of payroll-related 
costs and corporate income tax. Employer-paid payroll taxes 
include employer’s share of pension, unemployment and social 
security fees, and insurances. Total income taxes paid for EY 
Finland FY21 is 3,8 million euros.        

EY Finland’s revenue increased by 4,7% in FY21 compared 
to FY20. Please refer our Financial statements for further 
information. 

Community contributions have been defined to include 
donations made to Hope ry, funding for Kasvuryhmä, 
sponsorship of Helsinki Pride and cooperation with Aalto 
University.

Investing in innovation

Over the last three years, EY globally made investments 
of 8 billion US dollars and has committed to an expanded 
investment spend of 10 billon US dollars over the next three 
years, an increase of 25%. 

The investment spend is being made in vital areas such as 
audit quality, transformation, technology and people and 
will continue to help EY clients, EY people and communities 
innovate and transform.

As a professional service organization, our innovation efforts 
extend beyond the traditional research and development 
definition; instead, our investments in developing better 
products and services to serve clients and EY people better 
captures the current focus on innovation.

In the Nordics we launched SALLY an innovation studio 
focused on sustainable business actions in December 2020. 

https://sally.doberman.co/
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Social value generated

Using our core business capabilities to make a difference 
In December FY20, we launched EY’s global corporate 
volunteering program, EY Ripples, in the Nordics.

We’ve created EY Ripples because we believe business has 
an important role to play in tackling society’s toughest 
challenges and to foster sustainable inclusive growth. EY 
Ripples mobilizes EY people, tapping into our unique skills and 
knowledge to achieve a long-term vision, and aims to positively 
impact one billion lives by 2030 globally.

Through EY Ripples, we apply our skills and experiences 
where they can make the biggest difference — we use our skills 
in new contexts, take on stretch assignments and practice 
broader competencies than might typically be required in our 
day-to-day roles. EY Ripples is focused on supporting the next- 
generation workforce, working with impact entrepreneurs 
and accelerating environmental sustainability. We believe 
these are the best ways to use our skills to help overcome the 
biggest challenges facing our planet — as framed by the UN 
Sustainable Development Goals.

In Finland, we had 160 participants for EY Ripples activities 
in FY21 supporting our three focus areas. Our employees 
contributed to several local and global initiatives, and in 
total had a positive impact on over 206,000 lives. Under 
the EY Ripples program, EY people in Finland supported 
students with career mentoring and international talent with 
job applying webinars, supported Nose Day and Women’s 
Bank organizations’ work, and helped conduct the national 
Corporate Responsibility reporting competition.

EY employees in Finland can spend up to 15 working hours 
annually for volunteering at work initiatives.

We have evaluated our management approach to job creation, 
economic growth through paid taxes and CSR activities. 
Overall, we had a revenue increase on 4,7% in 2021 compared 
to 2020, and 240 new hires during the year. In addition, 
160 participants on CSR activities through EY Ripples. We 
are pleased with our contribution during 2021, and with the 
impact COVID-19 had on FY21 for the whole business we 
consider our management approach to have proven agile and 
able to meet the demands and opportunities we faced during 
the financial year. 

https://www.ey.com/en_gl/corporate-responsibility
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SIGNATURES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

In Helsinki, November 23 2021

Mikko Järventausta Terhi Mäkinen

Mikko Järventausta Terhi Mäkinen

Mikko Äijälä Heikki Ilkka

Mikko Äijälä                  Heikki Ilkka 
Managing Director                 Chair of the Board

Prosperity
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BOARD OF Directors’ REPORT FOR 
FINANCIAL YEAR  
JULY 1, 2020 – JUNE 30, 2021

The financial year of EY Finland was strong both in terms of 
growth and profitability. Both the Finnish economy and EY 
operations recovered quickly from the COVID-19 pandemic 
and EY operations grew from the beginning of the financial 
year.

Turnover and profit
The turnover of the financial year was 155,6 million euros 
(2020: 148,7 million euros, 2019: 131,3 million euros) with 
an increase of 4,7% compared to the previous financial period. 
All four of EY business areas experienced growth, which was 
especially strong in Strategy and Transactions and Consulting 
with over 20% growth. Pass-through billing decreased by 16% 
partly due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The profit was 15,0 
million euros (2020: 9,5 million euros, 2019: 8,5 million 
euros). The operating profit margin was 9,6% (2020: 6,4%, 
2019: 6,5%). 

Balance sheet and financial position
The balance sheet total was 77,4 million euros. Financial 
solidity was maintained at the target level and liquidity 
remained good throughout the financial year. Not taking 
the subordinated loan from the partners into account, the 
company’s equity ratio was 21,9% (2020: 18,4%; 2019: 
19,1%). Taking the subordinated loan (3,5 million euros) into 
account, the company’s equity ratio was 26,4% (2020: 24,3%, 
2019: 26,4%). The company has no other interest-bearing 
liabilities. The return on equity was 88,7% (2020: 86,3%, 
2019: 85,2%). The liquid assets at the date of the Financial 
statementss were 23,6 million euros.

Governance
From July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, the company’s Board of 
Directors consisted of Heikki Ilkka, Mikko Järventausta, Ulla 
Nykky and Mikko Äijälä. During this period, Heikki Ilkka acted 
as the Chair of the Board of Directors and Mikko Äijälä as 
Managing Director. For the accounting period starting on July 
1, 2020 and ending on June 30, 2021, the Annual General 
Meeting selected Authorised Public Accountant Kalle Kotka as 
the company auditor and Idman Vilén Grant Thornton Oy as 
the deputy auditor.

Personnel
During the financial year, the company employed 971 people 
on average. At the end of the financial period, it employed 
944 people. The average age of personnel at the end of the 
financial year was 33,7 years.

The most important risks and uncertainties
Risk management at EY has been built to support the 
implementation of a growth strategy and to ensure that 
operative functions continue without disruption. Risk 
management and quality control are implemented in a 
coordinated manner in all business units in accordance with 
international and Nordic guidelines. The Board of Directors 
proactively monitors any possible demands presented to 
the company. All business areas monitor the development 
of customer satisfaction systematically. There were no 
considerable changes in the company’s risk position during the 
financial period.

Subordinated loan
The loan is a subordinated loan from the partners. The loan 
has no collateral, and it has been issued for the time being. 
In the case of bankruptcy and liquidation, the payment of the 
loan capital and interest is a lesser priority than payments 
to other debtors. The interest of the loan must be adjusted 
annually utilizing the Finnish government’s five-year bond 
interest rate of + 2,5%.

Company shares
The company has class A, class B and class C shares. At the 
date of this Financial statements there were 30,150 class A 
shares, of which 140 were in the company’s possession. There 
was one class B share and one class C share. The class A, B 
and C shares differ from each other in the following way:

1. In the Annual General Meeting, class A shares have one 
vote and class B shares have one vote, and class C shares 
always have one vote more than the combined vote of 
the class A and B shares. Class C shares are not entitled 
to receive funds from the company in any of the ways 
mentioned in the Limited Liability Companies Act.  
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Class B and class C shares are not entitled to a distribution 
quota during the dismantlement of the company or its 
removal from the trade register.

2. When the company accrues profits, dividends are first paid 
to the class A shares, offering a good rate of return for 
their equity. The rest of the profits of the financial period 
may be paid as dividends for class B share.

During the financial year, the company issued 930 new shares 
based on a decision made by the company’s Annual General 
Meeting for the issue price of 46 500 euros. During the 
financial year, the company obtained 3 020 of its own shares 
based on the authorization granted by the Annual General 
Meeting to the Board of Directors. The procurement price of 
the shares was 154 120 euros. Acquisition of the company’s 
own shares did not materially affect the division of ownership 
and voting power in the company. The obtained shares have 
been annulled.

The Board of Directors’ proposal for operations regarding 
company profit
Regarding the distribution of company profits for the financial 
year from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, the Board of 
Directors propose that, apart from shares in the company’s 
possession, 19,50 euros per share be distributed to class A 
shares and 14 773 031,75 euros per share to class B share.

Information on essential events since the end of the financial 
year and estimation of probable future developments
The expectations for the Finnish economy are positive, thus 
forming a solid basis for growth in EY operations during the 
new financial year. The developments in EY Finland’s business 
will be monitored actively with fast reactions to changes when 
necessary. Our strong market position, excellent customer 
base and the ever-expanding selection of services provide a 
good foundation for the new accounting period.
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INCOME STATEMENT July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021 July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020
Turnover 155 631 374,88 148 656 064,68

Materials and services
External services -26 634 332,25 -25 382 325,22

Staff expenses
Salaries and wages
Indirect employee expenses

Pension expenses
Other social expenses

-64 907 211,90

-10 271 768,35
-2 589 797,75

-63 254 074,28

-11 250 144,43
-2 402 618,82

-77 768 778,00 -76 906 837,53

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Planned depreciation -1 275 054,49 -1 293 450,13

Other operating expenses -30 776 654,96 -32 796 994,61

Operating profit 19 176 555,18 12 276 457,19

Financial income and expenses
Other interest and financial income
Interest expenses and other financial expenses

581 750,90
-940 439,04

388 800,48
-697 465,83

-358 688,14 -308 665,35

Profit before appropriations and taxes 18 817 867,04 11 967 791,84

Income taxes
Taxes for the financial year -3 805 886,70 -2 428 896,54

Profit for the financial year 15 011 980,34 9 538 895,30
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ASSETS June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Development costs 109 324,00 0,00

Intangible rights 128 236,14 154766,65

Other intangible assets 539 995,39 350732,37

777 555,53 505499,02

Tangible assets

Equipment and hardware 2 532 680,16 2306706,98

Investments

Shares in Group companies 3,490,57 3490,57

Other shares and holdings 675,789,69 675789,69

679,280,26 679280,26

Non-current assets total 3 989 515,95 3491486,26

 
Current assets

 
Trade receivables

Accounts receivable 44 744 715,43 27574285,03

Accrued receivables 1 866 774,37 1307848,91

Other receivables 3 200 829,51 4335268,80

49 812 319,31 33217402,74

Cash in hand and at bank 23 580 972,82 23233223,97

23 580 972,82 23233223,97

Current assets total 73 393 292,13 56450626,71

Total Assets 77 382 808,08 59942112,97
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Equity
Share capital 100,000,00 100 000,00

Reserve for invested non-restricted equity 774 665,53 884 751,45

Retained earnings 1 039 009,88 524 234,58

Profit for the financial year 15 011 980,34 9 538 895,30

Total equity 16 925 655,75 11 047 881,33

Long-term liabilities
Capital loan 3 541 500,00 3 488 500,00

Short-term liabilities
Accounts payable 8 503 302,57 5 988 627,95

Accrued liabilities 38 943 318,23 30 502 149,97

Other liabilities 9 469 031,53 8 914 953,72

56 915 652,33 45 405 731,64

Total liabilities 60 457 152,33 48 894 231,64

Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity 77 382 808,08 59 942 112,97
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT July 1, 2020  
– June 30, 2021

July 1, 2019  
– June 30, 2020

Cash flow from operations:
Profit before appropriations and taxes 18 817 867 11 967 792

Adjustments

Planned depreciation 1 275 054 1 293 450

Unrealised foreign currency gains and losses -104 265 -11 806

Financial income and expenses 358 688 308 665

Cash flows before the change in working capital 20 347 344 13 558 101

Change in working capital:
Increase (+) / decrease (-) in short-term non-interest-bearing receivables -16 594 917 8 134 795

Increase (+) / decrease (-) in short-term non-interest-bearing liabilities 11 509 921 7 065 646

Cash flow of operations before financial items and taxes 15 262 348 28 758 543

Paid interest and payments for other financial costs of business -684 894 -610 140

Received interest from business 497 240 396 623

Direct taxes paid -3 805 887 -2 745 000

Cash flow from operations 11 268 808 25 800 026

Cash flow from investments:
Investments in tangible and intangible assets -1 773 084 -2 034 135

Cash flow from investments -1 773 084 -2 034 135

Cash flow from financing:
Chargeable increase in equity 46 500 243 000

Acquisition of the company’s own shares -156 586 -196 086

Repayments for long-term loans 0 -348 000

Withdrawals of long - term loans 53 000 0

Interest paid and payments for financial costs -66 769 -83 342

Dividends paid and other profit distribution -9 024 120 -8 488 020

Cash flow from financing -9 147 975 -8 872 448

Change in financial assets, increase (+) / decrease (-) 347 749 14 893 442

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the financial year 23 233 224 8 339 782

Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the financial year 23 580 973 23 233 224
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NOTES TO Financial statements

Valuation and amortisation principles

Non-current assets

Tangible and intangible assets are capitalised to their direct procurement costs, with the planned depreciations deducted. The 

planned depreciation for non-current assets is based on the original procurement cost of the assets and the estimated useful life.

Depreciation periods for various groupings of assets are:

Years
Development costs 2

Goodwill 7

Intangible rights 5

Other long-term expenditure 3-10

Equipment and hardware 7

Other equipment 5

IT equipment 2-5

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Turnover by field
Audit
Other expert services

51 305 808,34
104 325 566,54

49 512 871,94
99 143 192,74

155 631 374,88 148 656 064,68

Auditing fees
Auditing fees 22 870,00 22 330,00

Income taxes

Taxes for the financial year 3 781 886,70 2 428 896,54

Taxes for previous year 24 000,00 0,00

Non-accounted nominal tax receivables, postponed depreciation 170 166,95 160 743,43
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Intangible and tangible assets

Intangible assets
Development 

costs
Other long-term 

expenditure
Equipment and 

hardware

Procurement costs July 1, 2020 206 000,00 0,00 629 440,43 4 870 144,68

Increases 0,00 109 324,00 262 830,74 1 400 929,45

Decreases (scrapping) 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00

Procurement costs June 30, 2021 206 000,00 109 324,00 892 271,17 6 271 074,13

Accumulated depreciation July 1, 2020 51 233,35 0,00 278 708,06 2 563 437,71

Depreciation for the financial year 26 530,51 0,00 73 567,72 1 174 956,26

Decreases 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00

Accumulated depreciation, June 30 2021 77 763,86 0,00 352 275,78 3 738 393,97

Procurement costs June 30, 2021 206 000,00 109 324,00 892 271,17 6 271 074,13

Accumulated depreciation June 30, 2021 77 763,86 0,00 352 275,78 3 738 393,97

Book value June 30, 2021 128 236,14 109 324,00 539 995,39 2 532 680,16

Investments June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Other shares and participations 675 789,69 675 789,69

Shares in Group companies

Julkispalvelut EY Oy 3 490,57 3 490,57

Domicile Share of votes Share of funds Equity
Profit/Loss for 
the financial year

Julkispalvelut EY Oy Helsinki 66% 32% 31 275,92 -7 357,70

In accordance with the Finnish Accounting Act, chapter 6, section 3, subsection 1, the subsidiary’s Financial statements have not been combined 
with the Ernst & Young Financial statements since it is not necessary in offering a correct and sufficient understanding of the results of the group’s 
operations and financial position. The company’s equity and the profit from the financial period are based on the group’s latest Financial statements.

Short-term receivables June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

Accounts receivable 44 744 715,43 27 574 285,03

Other receivables 3 200 829,51 4 335 268,80

Accrued receivables

Deferral of personnel costs 0,00 7 443,51

Advance rent payments 818 409,00 14 072,49

Tax amortisation 0,00 316 103,46

Amortisation of other costs of business 1 048 365,37 970 229,45

1 866 774,37 1 307 848,91
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Changes in equity June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Share capital, July 1 100 000,00 100 000,00

Share capital, June 30 100 000,00 100 000,00

Reserve for invested non-restricted equity, July 1 884 751,45 837 837,45

Investment to the reserve for invested non-restricted equity 46 500,00 243 000,00

Acquisition of the company’s own shares -156 585,92 -196 086,00

Reserve for invested non-restricted equity, June 30 774 665,53 884 751,45

Retained profit, July 1 10 063 129,88 9 012 254,58

Payment of dividends -9 024 120,00 -8 488 020,00

Retained profit, June 30 1 039 009,88 524 234,58

Profit for the financial year 15 011 980,34 9 538 895,30

Total equity 16 925 655,75 11 047 881,33

A statement of the distributable equity, June 30
Retained profit 1 039 009,88 524 234,58

Profit for the financial year 15 011 980,34 9 538 895,30

Reserve for invested non-restricted equity 774 665,53 884 751,45

Development costs -109 324,00 0,00

Total 16 716 331,75 10 947 881,33

Short-term liabilities

Accounts payable 8 503 302,57 5 988 627,95

Other liabilities 9 469 031,53 9 550 599,72

Accrued liabilities

Deferral of personnel costs and

the related social costs 27 566 136,35 23 336 897,92

Tax accrual 1 652 836,10 0,00

Other 9 724 345,78 7 165 252,05

38 943 318,23 30 502 149,97

Notes on personnel and members of the organs

The average number of employees during the financial year 971 985

Debts with business mortgage offered as collateral

Line of credit agreements

The total amount of granted limit 5,000,000,00 5 000 000,00

In use 0,00 0,00

Total granted mortgage 8,500,000,00 8 500 000,00
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Other commitments granted on company’s own behalf

Rent collateral 98 259,98 79 853,31

Liabilities for leasing and rent contracts

To be paid next year 5 375 312,90 5 344 397,94

To be paid in more than a year 4 765 054,85 8 844 403,68

Total 10 140 367,75 14 188 801,62
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SIGNATURES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MANAGING DIRECTOR

In Helsinki, October 26 2021

Mikko Järventausta Ulla Nykky

Mikko Järventausta Ulla Nykky

Mikko Äijälä Heikki Ilkka

Mikko Äijälä                  Heikki Ilkka 
Managing Director                 Chair of the Board

AUDITOR’S NOTE

Auditor’s report has been issued today, In Helsinki, October 26 2021

     Kalle Kotka

      Kalle Kotka 

      Authorised Public Accountant
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Reporting principles

Framework and reporting metrics
This sustainability report contains general information about 
EY’s economic, social and environmental operations in FY21, 
between July 1st, 2020 and June 30th 2021. We report 
on a yearly basis and our reporting cycle is aligned to our 
fiscal year, thus from June to July. The report references 
the “Stakeholder Capitalism Metrics” presented by the World 
Economic Forum in cooperation with Deloitte, EY, KPMG and 
PwC (2020) and the “core” option of the Global Reporting 
Initiative (GRI) Standards. In addition, we report on climate risk 
in accordance with the Task Force on Climate-related Financial 
Disclosure (TCFD) framework. EY Global is reporting according 
to United Nations Global Compact (UNGC) and the Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs) and we also refer to those in our 
report

We have also integrated our financial and sustainability 
reporting aligned with the Integrated Reporting <IR> 
framework and aligned with the concept of double materiality. 
Compared to the prior year, we have aligned our Nordics 
reporting and created a Nordics reporting template that 
apply to all our Nordic countries (Denmark, Finland, Norway 
and Sweden). This is our first report that is aligned with WEF 
Stakeholder Capitalism metrics and also our first integrated 
report. Our last report FY20 (reporting period 1.7.2019 to 
30.6.2020) was published on 2.12.2020. 

The report is not externally assured but verified by EY’s 
Climate Change & Sustainability Services.

Our aim is to increase what we disclose whenever we can, and 
in the current sustainability report, we have disclosed all 21 of 
the core metrics and seven of the 34 expanded metrics.

Restatements of information

EY Global retroactively changed the calculation principles 
for EY air travel. Previously air travel cost was booked and 
recognized based on person’s location whereas now the project 
owner to which the cost is booked holds the responsibility. 
Thus, the emissions reported here for FY19 and FY20 do not 
balance to the figures in our FY20 Sustainability report. 

We also had some minor mistakes in our waste amounts and 
electricity consumption figures in our FY20 report. Those 
changes also affect the GHG emission figures.

Since those are now corrected here, the reported figures here 
for FY19 and FY20 do not balance to the figures in our FY20 
Sustainability report.

WEF – IBC and GRI Index
All referenced disclosures and metrics are listed on the 
following pages. In the report, we have included the most 
material KPIs and metrics for EY.
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WEF- IBC index

WEF Metric
Core (C) / 

Expanded (E) Source Reporting / omission

Principles of Governance

Setting purpose C Principles of Governance, page 44

Governance body composition C Global governance page 38, Nordic 
governance pages 41-43

Material issues impacting 
stakeholders

C Contributing through stakeholder 
engagement, pages 21-23

Anti-corruption C Anti-corruption and bribery, page 46

Protected ethics advice and 
reporting mechanisms

C Business ethics and integrity, pages 
43-45

Integrating risk and opportunity into 
business process

C Risks and opportunities, pages 28-32

Purpose-led management E Global governance page 38, Nordic 
governance pages 41-43, Principles of 
Governance, page 44

Planet

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, 
TCFD implementation

C GHG emissions, page 52

TCFD implementation C Sustainability governance page 41, 
Risks and opportunities, pages 28-32, 
Task Force on Climate related Financial 
Disclosures (TCFD) page 51, GHG 
emissions, page 52

Land use and ecological sensitivity C Not applicable to EY since EY does not 
have sites at any adjacent to protected 
areas or KBAs.

Water consumption and withdrawal 
water-stressed areas

C EY House page 56 Water withdrawal in water-stressed 
areas not applicable as our water 
consumption is quite low and we do not 
operate in water-stressed areas

Paris-aligned GHG emission targets, 
Impact of GHG emissions

E Planet page 50, GHG emissions pages 
52-54

Single-use plastics E Waste management, page 57 We started to separate and recycle 
plastic during FY21, thus plastic is 
recycled and re-used. Before that 
plastic was sorted as energy waste and 
incinated. 

Reporting principles
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WEF Metric
Core (C) / 

Expanded (E) Source Reporting / omission

People

Diversity and inclusion C Diversity and inclusion, pages 62-65

Pay equality (%) C Pay equality, page 68

Wage level % C Finland doesn’t have a standard 
minimum wage and thus this indicator 
doesn’t apply. EY’s new hires for entry-
level positions are university students or 
recent graduates and thus the EY entry-
level wage is higher than in low-wage 
sectors.

Risk for incidents of child, forced or 
compulsory labour

C Human rights and labour, page 69

Health and safety C Employee health and wellbeing, pages 
70-72

 

Training provided C Training provided, page 73

Emploeyee well-being E Employee health and wellbeing, pages 
70-72

Prosperity

Absolute number and rate of 
employment

C Absolute number and rate of 
employment, page 74

Economic contribution C Economic contribution, page 76

Financial investment contributions C Investing in innovation, page 76

Total R&D expenses C Not applicable during FY21, to be 
included in FY22 report

Total tax paid C Economic contribution, page 76, 
Financial statements, page XX

Infrastructure investments and 
services supported

E Investing in innovation, page 76

Significant indirect economic 
impacts

E Social value generated, page 76

Social value generated E Social value generated, page 76

Reporting core metrics 21

 

Reporting expanded metrics 7

  

Reporting principles
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GRI index

GRI Metric GRI Description Source
Reporting / 
omission

Organizational profile

102-1 Name of the company Ernst & Young Oy, 
referred in the report as 
'EY Finland'

102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services How we create long-term value, page 8-20

102-3 Location of headquarters Helsinki

102-4 Location of operations 20 offices in Finland

102-5 Ownership and legal form Global governance, page 36

102-6 Markets served How we create long-term value, page 8-20

102-7 Scale of the organization Prosperity, page 74-76, How we create long-
term value, page 8-20

102-8 Information on employees and other workers Employment contract and type, page 67  

102-9 Supply chain Responsible supply chain, page 58

102-10 Significant changes to the organization and 
its supply chain

There are no significant 
changes in our supply 
chain compared to 
previous years

102-11 Precautionary Principle to the approach Planet, page 50

102-12 External initiatives Memberships of association and external 
initiatives, page 23

102-13 Membership of associations Memberships of association and external 
initiatives, page 23

Strategy

102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker - CEO 
letter

Country Managing partner's letter, pages 
6-7

102-15 Key impacts, risks and opportunities EY's impact on society, page 34 and Risks 
and opportunities, page 28

Ethics and integrity

102-16 Values, principles, standards and norms of 
behaviour

Contributing through our strategic pillars, 
page 11

102-17 Mechanisms for advice and concerns about 
ethics

Principles of Governance, page 29-30, 
Discrimination and harassment incidents, 
page 73

102-26 Role of highest governance body in setting 
purpose, values and strategy

Global executive, page 38, Nordic 
governance, page 39

Reporting principles
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GRI Metric GRI Description Source
Reporting / 
omission

Governance 

102-18 Governance structure Global governance page, 36-38, Nordic 
governance, pages 39-43

102-22 Composition of the highest governance body 
and its committees 

Global governance page, 36-38, Nordic 
governance, pages 39-43

Stakeholders

102-40 List of stakeholder groups Contributing though stakeholder 
engagement, page 21-22

102-41 Collective bargaining agreement Employment contract and type, page 67 We do not have a 
collective bargaining 
agreement in our field of 
business. 

102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders Contributing though stakeholder 
engagement, page 21-22

102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement Contributing though stakeholder 
engagement, page 21-22

102-44 Key topics and concerns raised Contributing though stakeholder 
engagement, page 21-22

Reporting practice

102-45 Entities included in the consolidated 
Financial statements

Financial statements pages 82-83, 89

102-46 Defining report content and topic 
Boundaries

Reporting principles, page 94

102-47 List of material topics EY's impact on society, page 34-35

102-48 Restatements of information Framework and reporting metrics, page 94

102-49 Changes in reporting Reporting principles, page 94

102-50 Reporting period 1.7.2020 - 30.6.2021

102-51 Date of most recent report 2020-12-02

102-52 Reporting cycle Annual

102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the 
report

Contact information, page 104

102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with the 
GRI Standards

Reporting principles, page 94

102-55 GRI content Index GRI Index, pages 98-102

102-56 External assurance The report is not 
externarly assured. 

Reporting principles
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GRI Metric GRI Description Source
Reporting / 
omission

People

103-1/2/3 Management approach 103-1 and 103-2: People, pages 60-63, 
Sustainability governance, page 39,  Value 
creation model 9, Risks and opportunities, 
people, page 31 
103-3: Evaluation of management approach, 
page 73"

Ernst & Young Oy, 
referred in the report as 
'EY Finland'

403-1 Occupational health and safety management 
system

Occupational health care and insurance, 
page 72

403-2 Hazard identification, risk assessment, and 
incident investigation

Employee health and well-being, page 70 Helsinki

403-3 Occupational health services Occupational health care and insurance, 
page 72

20 offices in Finland

403-4 Worker participation, consultation and 
communication on occupational health and 
safety

Health and safety committee, page 72

403-5 Worker training on occupational health and 
safety

Occupational health care and insurance, 
page 72

403-6 Promotion of worker health Employee health and wellbeing, pages 70-72

403-7 Prevention and mitigation of occupational 
health and safety impacts directly linked by 
business relationships

Employee health and wellbeing, pages 70-72  

403-10 Work-related ill health Employee health and wellbeing, pages 70-72

404-1 Average hours of training per year per 
employee

Training provided, page 73 There are no significant 
changes in our supply 
chain compared to 
previous years

404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and 
transition assistance programs

Training provided, page 73

404-3 Percentage of employees receiving regular 
performance and career development 
reviews

Training provided, page 73

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies of employees Diversity & Inclusion, pages 62-65, Board of 
Directors, EY Finland pages 40-41, Country 
Coordination Team, EY Finland, pages 42-43

405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of 
women to men

Pay equality, page 68

408-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk 
for incidents of child labor

Human rights and labour, page 69

409-1 Operations and suppliers at significant risk 
for incidents of forced or compulsory labor

Human rights and labour, page 69

Reporting principles
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GRI Metric GRI Description Source
Reporting / 
omission

Planet

103-1/2/3 Management approach 103-1 and 103-2: Planet, page 48-51, 
Sustainability governance, page 39,  Value 
creation model 9, Risks and opportunities 
planet, page 30 
103-3: Responsible supply chain, page 58"

302-1 Energy consumption within the organization Offices and buildings, page 55

"305-1 
305-2 
305-3"

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions GHG emissions; page 52

305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions GHG emissions; page 52 We do not have a 
collective bargaining 
agreement in our field of 
business. 

305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions GHG emissions; page 52-54

305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions GHG emissions; page 52-54

306-1 (2020) Waste generation and significant waste-
related impacts

Waste management, page 57

306-2 (2020) Management of significant waste-related 
impacts

Waste management, page 57

306-3 (2020) Waste generated Waste management, page 57

Prosperity

103-1/2/3 Management approach 103-1 and 103-2: Prosperity, pages 74-76, 
Sustainability governance, page 39,  Value 
creation model 9, Risks and opportunities 
prosperity, page 32 
103-3:Social value generated, page 77"

 

401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover Absolute number and rate of employment, 
page 74

201-1 Direct economic value generated and 
distributed

Economic contribution, page 76, Financial 
statements, page 84

202-1 "Ratios of standard entry level wage by 
gender compared to local  
minimum wage "

Finland doesn’t have a 
standard minimum wage 
and thus this indicator 
doesn’t apply. EY’s new 
hires for entry-level 
positions are university 
students or recent 
graduates and thus the 
EY entry-level wage is 
higher than in low-wage 
sectors.

202-2 Proportion of senior management hired 
from the local community

EY has a local 
management in each 
country and thus most of 
the senior management 
of each country are from 
the local community. 

Reporting principles
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GRI Metric GRI Description Source
Reporting / 
omission

Prosperity

203-1 Infrastructure investments and services 
supported

No infrastucture 
investements made 
during reporting year.

203-2 Significant indirect economic impacts One of our largest 
indirect economic impact 
is through job creation. 
Due to the nature of the 
work in our industry, 
our employees are 
educated and well paid. 
Thus, our employees 
pay more taxes and can 
support their families 
and spend more on 
local communities. 
We also support local 
communities for example 
through our charity work 
through EY Ripples. 

204-1 Proportion of spending on local suppliers Omission - We aim to 
include the data for 
FY22

205-1 Operations assessed for risks related to 
corruption

Anti-corruption and bribery, page 46

205-2 Communication and training about anti-
corruption policies and procedures

Anti-corruption and bribery, pages 46-47

205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and 
actions taken

Anti-corruption and bribery, page 46

419-1 Non-compliance with laws and regulations in 
the social and economic area

Anti-corruption and bribery, page 46

206-1 Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, 
anti-trus, and monopoly practices

Anti-corruption and bribery, page 46

207-1 Approach to tax Economic contribution, page 76, Financial 
statements, page 84 & 88

Reporting principles
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Calculation principles

Calculation principles for figures presented in the Planet part 
of the report. 

 Electricity: We have calculated an estimate of the 
emissions based on the actual electricity consumption of ten 
Finnish locations (including the head office in Helsinki) where 
consumption data is available (in other ten locations electricity 
is included in rent). We have calculated the consumption 
per person and then used that to make an estimate for total 
consumption in EY Finland based on FTEs and calculated an 
estimate of emissions using the calculated estimate of total 
consumption.  

The electricity consumed in EY Finland was switched to green 
electricity from the beginning of February 2021.

Electricity market-based emission factor: AIB European 
residual mixes 2020 (the factors are only CO2, not including 
equivalents) and we used 0 as a factor as from the beginning 
of February 2021 our electricity has been green.  

Electricity location-based emission factor: The average CO2 
emission factor for electricity production in Finland, calculated 
as a three-year moving average. (Tilastokeskus 2019 & 2018).

 District heating: We have actual heating consumption 
figures for our office in Helsinki. We have calculated the 
consumption per person and then used that to make an 
estimate for total consumption in EY Finland based on FTEs 
and calculated an estimate of emissions using the calculated 
estimate of total consumption.  

District heating location-based emission factor: The CO2 
emission factor and the list of localities for district heating 
cogeneration areas have not been published since 2019. 
Tilastokeskus publishes coefficients for CO2 emissions from 
Finland’s average district heating production. From these, the 
average of the last three years has been calculated, where 
cogeneration has been divided by the benefit-sharing method  
(Tilastokeskus 2019 & 2018).

 Business travel:

Emission factors used:

 Air: We have used the DEFRA 2019, DEFRA 2020, DEFRA 
2021 factors for Business travel air equivalent to each year 
(the factors are CO2 equivalent).

 Car: We have used the DEFRA 2019, DEFRA 2020, DEFRA 
2021 factors for Business travel land and calculated an 
average factor for each year (the factors are CO2 equivalent).

Since our data is only mileage and we do not know the type of 
fuel used in cars (gas, diesel, electric etc), we used the factors 
for the unknown fuel type. We also do not know the type of car 
used (whether the car is small or big SUV) we have calculated 
an average emission factor for any type of car used. 

 Train: DEFRA 2019, DEFRA 2020 Business travel land, 
National rail (the factors are CO2 equivalent).

 Waste: We have actual waste amounts for our biggest office 
in Helsinki. We have calculated the amount of waste per person 
and then used that to make an estimate for total amount of 
waste in EY Finland based on FTEs and calculated an estimate 
of emissions using the calculated estimate of total amount of 
waste.  

Emission factors used: WWF Climate Calculator factors - 
Finland 2018 (the factors are CO2 equivalent).

Reporting principles
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